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By Alan K. Simpson

hat an exciting yearl We have come a very long way in

the past twelve months. We have made enormous

progress in our capital campaign, while raising some record

numbers. I would be remrss il I did not express our deepest

appreciation to every one of you who have been so kind and

generous in helping us to attain our fiscal goals. It is one thing

to make the plans but it is a thrilling other thing to realize

them... and with your bighearted help and support, we are

doing itl
We keep looking for ways to "reinvent" the Buffalo Bill

Historical Center and by that I do not mean that we ever want

to change what we are. We are already a pretty darn good out-

fit. I do mean that we want to be better today than we all were

yesterday. I'm here to tell you today we keep linding those

waysl In the fall we stripped the Plains Indian Museum clean

and broke ground for our central utilities plant addition. The

architects, designers and construction crews are helping us to

reshape this entire physical plant in order to accommodate 21st

century ideas. They are on budget, on target, and on schedulel

You will see some amazing changes ln the Plains Indlan

Museum come June 2000. And what a wonderful experience it

is for all of us-Board, staff, and volunteers-to -watch this lat-

est, almost magical metamorphosis of what James Michenor so

aptly called "the Smithsonran of the West." What's even more

amazing is how smoothly all of this is occurring with relatively

little inconvenience to our visitors, our community and our staff.

I am very pleased and proud to find mysell at the helm ol
this great treasure ship. And what a pleasure it is to work with

such a wonderlul staff, the advisory boards and this Board of

Trustees-all of whom are creative thinkers who are leading the

way for us into thrs new century. Dozens of volunteers have self-

lessly served this incredible institution in so many meaningful

ways. Small wonder it is then that the Bullalo Bill Historical

Center continues to be a most preeminent inrerpreter of the

American West, What a splendid yearl Thanks for your part in

it all.



By B. Byron Price

Frrhe Buflalo Bill Hisrorical
II Cenrer's Campaign to Secure

the Future gained fresh momen-

tum as it moved into its public

phase during the last quarter of
1999. Thanks to the generosity

ol supporters old and new this
unprecedenred lundraising init ia-

tive has already yielded gratify-

ing results. In September the
Board approved phase I of our capital construction project
which includes the reinstallation of the Plains Indian Museum

and the meation of a central urilities plant. Both projects will be

completed by June 2000.

While planning and managing these momentous changes

the museum maintained a vigorous exhibition and program-
ming schedule. Guided by a commirted, generous and enthusi-
astic Board ol Trustees and inspired by knowledgeable advisory
boards, the Historical Center's passionate and gifted staff and
volunteers provided quality education, entertainment and inspi-
ration for more than 200,000 visitors in 1999. A new technolo-
gy infrastructure, made possible by the generosity ol the

Grainger Foundation, will soon propel these activities into the
realm of telecommunications and the Internet, insuring broad-
er service to a wider audience.

EXHIBITIONS AND COLLECTIONS

Unbroken Spirit: The Wild Horse in the American Landscape,

the centerpiece ol the museum's 1999 exhibition schedule,
enjoyed enthusiastic visitor response throughout its summer
and fall run. An exhibit team led by Dr. Charles preston, Wally
Reber, and Deborah Steele, assembled an exciting interdiscipli-
nary look at an endangered western icon through the lenses of
art, photography, history, science and public policy. An accom-
panying symposium discussed important economic, scientilic
and political issues surrounding the continued tenure of wild
horses in the West. IJnbroken Spirit went on to open success-

lully at the National Museum of Wildlife Art in Jackson,
Wyoming, and will travel to other venues in 2000.

In September the Plains Indian Museum closed to the pub-

lic to undergo a complete reinterpretation and reinstallation, the
first wholesale changes since 1979. Even belore workers began
to dismantle dated exhibit cases, a team of staff members and
outside scholars directed by curator Emma Hanson, were hard
at work on an innovative interpretive plan designed to incorpo-
rate new scholarship and present a broader and more up-to-
date story of Plains Indian cultures. The Plains Indian Museum
advisory board, chaired by Harriet Sruarr Spencer, played a key
role in this effort, not only reviewing the plans but also locating

important inlormation and artifacts for inclusion in the new dis,
plays. A small, temporary exhibition of Native American arti-
lacts is on display in the CFM breezeway until the plains Indian
Museum reopens to the public on June 17, 2000.

The museum hosted two photography exhibitions ol note
in 1999: Imagining the Open Range: Erwin E. Smith, Cowboy

Photographer, a traveling show organized by the Amon Carter

Museum, and The Last Cowboy. Photographs by Adam Jahiel,
developed by the BBHC and the photographer. Mounred togerh,

er under the supervision of Nathan Bender, Housel Curator of
the McCracken Research Library, these dtsplays offered a vivid
comparison of historic and contemporary western photography
and cowboy life. The McCracken Library staff also began plan-

ning for Noyel Adventures: The LiJe and Writings of General

Charles Ring, an exhibir opening in early 2000.
During 1999 Dr Sarah Boehme, John Bugas Curator of the

Whitney Gallery of Western Arr organized the exhibirion Ih4
Battle of Many Names: June 25-26, 1876. Sarah also conrinued
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planning for .John James Audubon in the West; The Last

Expedition: Mammals of North America, a major exhibit opening

in Cody in June 2000 and traveling to museums in Philadelphia,

Los Angeles and Houston. This important show is made possi-

ble by a grant from the Shell Oil Company Founda[ion

The Cody Firearms Museum presented two fascinating col-

lections of firearms representing the Wurfflein lamily ol
Philadelphra and the Freund Brothers of Wyoming. During

1999, the Robert w. Woodrufl Curator Howard Madus also com-

pleted work on the Olin Gallery and the reinstallation ol the

Woodruff Embellished Firearms Gallery.

Bulfalo Bill Museum curator Dr. Paul Fees installed a saddle

shop exhibit based on the collection of longtime leather crafts-

man Victor Alexander. He also oversaw the loans of significant

museum artilacts for Buffalo Bill's WtldWest, a traveling exhibit

mounted at the Royal Armouries, Leeds, England, and partici-

pated in a related seminar.

In addition to meeting an extensive exhibition schedule, the

museum's collections slafl continued an important digirization

initiative, made possible by the Brown Foundalion of Houston,

Texas. By the end of 1999 this effort had amassed some 15,450

digital images of objects lrom the Center's col- ,,,,,,,,,,,.i r,,

lection These images will facilitate

collections documentation. research

and conservation and rnterpreta-

tlon. The museum is planning

to uiilrze some of these

images in its first virtual

Internet exhibition in con-

nection with lhe Audubon

show in 2000.

VISITAIION AND

COMMUNICATIONS

The Bulfalo Bill Historical Center

continued an aggressive marketing cam-

paign with the help ol a 572,000 grant lrom Park

County Travel Council. These lunds enabled the museum to pur-

chase print advertising in national publications including

National Geographic Traveler, AAA Tour Book and AAA Home and

Away, American Heritage, Country Home. Old West Tail Explorer,

Cowboys 6. Indians, Better Homes and Gardens, plus a significant

number of regional travel and RV guides. Such exposure

extended the Bullalo Bill Historical Center's name recognition to

a national audience. The museum also enjoyed nalional press

exposure for the summer exhibition Unbroken Spirit. The Wild

Horse in the American Landscape and additional coverage in

national, regional, and local media lor such annual programs as

Cowboy Songs and Range Ballads, the Plains Indtan Powwow,

the Bullalo Bill Art Show and Sale and the Buflalo Bill Celebrity

Shootout. Film and video crews and journalists visited the

Historical Center on a regular basis to galher stories for such

diverse sources as Danish National Television, Yellowstone

Public Radio, Esquire Magazine (Czech edition), A&E Network,

the History Channel and the Discovery Channel.

The publications department produced a number ol out-

standing educatronal and promotional brochures during 1999.

Its fine work was also evident in the exhibition catalog Unbroken

Spirit. the Wild Horse in the American Landscape, distributed

through University ol Washington Press and our own Museum

Selections. The popular catalog Interior West: The CraJt and Style

oJ Thomas Molesworth, originally published by the Historical

Center in 1980, entered a second printing in 1999.

The Buffalo Bill Art Show and Sale, a cooperative eflort

between the Historical Center and the Cody Chamber ol

Commerce, en;oyed steady growth in 1999. With gross sales

reaching nearly a hall million dollars, the art auction netted

578,574 in proceeds lor the historical center. This prestigious

show is now part of an event-filled week in September known as

the Rendezvous Royale, which includes the Western Design

Conference and the museum's annual Patrons Ball.

Thanks to a three-year 5943,500 grant from the Grainger

Foundation, through the Thomas P Grainger fam-

ily of Saratoga, wyoming, the museum is

'':'' experiencing enormous technologi-
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:': ;: tri:J:

and encourage visltation

and support. The installa-

l;";';;; ;.w inrrastruc'

ture has linked the various

departments of the muse-

um together for the first

time, providing up-to-date

equipment and common soft-

ware platforms. These tools are

not oniy helping sreamline day-to-

day work habits but also are allowing the

Buffalo Bill Historical Center to share its magnifi-

cent collections with the world through the Internet at the web-

site: www.bbhc.org.

EDUCATIONAL INITIATIVES AND PUBLIC PROGRAMS

The museum's ongoing commitment to educational pro-

gramming continued in 1999 wi[h several importanl public sym-

posia and seminars designed to explore historically rooted

issues of importance lo the modern West. In August, lhe

Historical Center and the Bureau of Land Management co-spon-

sored a two-day symposium on wild horses in conjunction with

the museum exhibit on lhe same subject. Fourteen noted

authorities spoke on various aspects of the subject followed by a

field trip to the federal wild horse reluge in the Pryor Mountains

Ceorge Carljn. wild Llorses (it Play in the Prairtes af the PLatte. (detail). c. 1 855-1 870. Oil on paperboard on Brislol board, 1 B 1 12 x 2.5 in Buffalo Bjll Historical Center,

cody, WY. Cifr of Paul Mellon.



north of Cody. Horses were also the theme ol the 23rd annual

Plarns Indian Seminar in September. The Horse as Symbol in

Plains Indian Cultures attracted a near-capacity audience from
22 starcs, Canada, England, Sweden, Denmark and Germany.

A series of lree public programs made possible by the

\ /yoming Council for the Humanities focused on artist William
R. Leigh's Wyoming adventures. In April the Center hosted the

I 7th annual Cowboy Songs and Range Ballads weekend. Over

100 perlormers from 15 states participated in this, the longesr

running cowboy music program in the nation. "Cody, Roosevelt,

and the Rough Riders: American History on Film" provided a

stimulating topic for the 1999 Ron Bishop Western Film Seminar.

Featured speakers included screenwriter Dan Gagliasso and

noted western historian Dr. Paul A. Hutton.

Dr. Hutton, a professor of history at the University of New

Mexico also led off the 2Oth annual Larom Summer Institute in
Western American Studies offering a fascinating course on The

Western Hero. During the same session, B. Byron Price,

Executive Director of the BBHC, examined the history ol west-

ern ranching in a course entitled, From Open Range to Feed Lot:

Western Cattle Ranching, 1850-1990. The second part of the

Larom series included Prolessor Lawrence L. Loendorf, from
New Mexico State University, who spoke on Prehistoric Rock Art:
Pictographs and Petroglyphs in the Intermountain West and Dave

Warren, former Deputy Director of the National Museum of the

American Indian, Smithsonian Instltution, who lectured on

Native American Tribalism: Emerging Paradigms of a New Indian

Society in the 21st Century.

During 1999 twenty-four students completed the first

Museum Discovery course olfered for independent study credit

at Cody High School. These bright students shared what they

had learned in presentations to middle school students through-

out the community. The MILES Program (Museum Interpretation

Learning and Enrichment lor Students) funded by grants from

the Texaco Foundation, enabled 317 students and chaperones

from distant schools in southwestern and northeastern
Wyoming to take advantage of the Historical Center's rich edu-

cational offerings lirsthand.

The museum's Artist in Residency program included six

artists in 1999: T D. Kelsey, Arthur Amlotte, Allan Mardon,

Donna Howell-Sickles, Jeff Rudolph and Geoll Parker. From July
to mid-August, 558 children ranging in ages from 2 to 16 years

o1d attended 37 summer workshop classes.

The success of the museum's education and curatorial pro'
grams would not have been possible without the efforts of some

200 volunteers who contributed almost 10,000 hours of servrce,

assisting the staff in a variety of capacities and enabling the

museum to reach a larger audience. Too much cannot be said

for the enthusiastic elforts of these dedicated volunteers.

The museum's ongoing internship program continued to

attract students throughout the nation and from as lar away as

Germany and Sweden. Thanks to a growing partnership with
Northwest College in Powell, Wyoming, the museum was able to

provide professional experience for several additional students.

From top:

Young shooter at the 1 999 Bulfalo Bill Celebrity Shootout.
Performers'at annual Cowboy Songs and Range Ballads Program
Traditional dancer at annual Plains Indian Museum Powwow.
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The 1999 Plains lndian Powwow drew over 5,000 dancers,

drummers, and spectators to one of the nation's premier

Powwow events. More than 3,200 guests turned out for music,

demonstrations and reenactments of frontier life at the

Historical Center's annual Frontier Festival. General Norman

Schwarzkopl led the list of celebrities participating in the 1999

Bullalo Bill Celebrity Shootout. Board Chairman Alan K.

Simpson, Executive Director Byron Price, and several other staff

members participated in this fun-filled weekend of shooting

events and clinics.

DEVELOPMENT AND MEMBERSHIP

The Buffalo Bill Historical Center experienced a banner year

in developmenlin 1999, reporting increases in every lund rais-

ing area. By the end of the year, the museum's Campaign to

Secure the Future, totaled more than S2B million in cash and

pledges. The museum received another $1 million in grants,

nearly 5450,000 from the Annual Fund drive, and more than

$150,000 in net proceeds lrom the Buffalo Bill Art Show and

Sale and the Patrons Ball. Historical Center memberships pro-

duced an additional S508,825 for the Center and Cody Firearms

research generated over S61 ,000 in income.

FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS

Associate director Wally Reber and facilities manager Paul

Brock coordinated the detailed planning effort required to man-

age the Plains Indian Museum reinterpretation and central plant

construction projects. A Board of Trustees' building committee

chaired by ErnestJ. Goppert is providing oversight of the process

to insure that schedule deadlines and budget targets are met

with minimal disruptions to visitors and staff.

Dean Swift and his stafl continued to maximize revenue

and minimize expenses in the operation of Museum Selections

and the Eatery. Enhanced productivity allowed the Eatery to

accommodate a larger number of in'house special events than

ever before in 1999. Besides their value to the Historical Center,

these operations are models for museum stores and lood service

facilities nationally.

PERSONNEL

The Buffalo Bill Historical Center possesses a staff of excep-

tional quality, experience and dedication. Much of the muse-

um's success in any year depends upon the efforts of these

bright and devoted individuals.

The full-time stalf saw some significant changes and reas-

signments in 1999. Dr. Robert Pickering arrived from the

Denver Museum of Natural History to assume the duties of the

Historical Center's first Collier-Read Deputy Director for

Collections and Education. Phil Anthony (operating engineer),

Chris Berrey (electncian), and Rich Herman (grounds superin-

tendent & assistant to the facilities manager), all joined the

maintenance department. Thom Huge replaced law school-

bound Scott Hagel as Director of Communications. The educa-

W. H. D. Koerner (1878-1938), Harses, 1927-1933, Breaking Colts, Phil Spear Ranch. Lodge Grass, MT black and white pholograph. Buflalo Bill Historjcal

Center, Cody, WY. Gift of the artist's heirs, W H. D. Koerner lll. and Ruth Koerner Oliven



tion department said goodbye to Children and Family

Program Coordinator Janice Fuld who departed for graduate

school at Harvard. Janice was replaced by Gretchen Henrich.

Marguerite House joined the stalf as secretary for the

McCracken Library and the Whitney Gallery The museum's

inlormatron technology department welcomed Christopher

Nelson.

October saw the departure of director of planning and

development Frank Goodyear who became executrve direc-

tor of the prestigious Heard Museum in Phoenlx. George

Mongon, of Vail, Colorado, assumed the duties of Interim
Director ol Development. A national search was begun to
replace departing director of education Sharon Schroeder.

Cheryl Henry was appointed Adminisrative Assistant to the

Deputy Director of Collections and Education and Lynn

Houze, Secretary/Curatorial Assistant lor the Buffalo Bill

Museum. Interim Curator Simeon Stoddard replaced Cody

Firearms Curator Howard Madaus who left the staff to pursue

independent consulting and research. Deborah Steele

became a full-time curatorial assistant for the Draper

Museum ol Natural History. Fay Bisbee joined the collections

stalf as registration assistant and Kristi Keyes replaced Linda

Riley as accounting assistant. It was especially gratifying in
1999 to be able to fill so many vacant positions with candi-

dates from within the institution

ill:utiurrurtitlllli:'".,rrtllill|1lis'
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Mr. & Mrs. AlfredJ. Cali
Mr. & Mrs. Paul V. Cali
Mr. & Mrs. Dyer H. Campbell
Mr. David H. Carnahan, Jr.
Mr. Thomas K. Carpenter
Mr. & Mrs. William H.

Carpenter
Mr. & Mrs. Win L. Carter
Mr. & Mrs. Silas S. Cathcart
Cedar Ridge Realty
Ms. Anne Harrison Chandler
Ms. Gertrude W Chandler
Mr. Richard E. Chapman
Mr. Michael E. Chappelear
The Hon. & Mrs. Richard B.

Cheney
Mr. & Mrs. William B.

Chenoweth
Mr. & Mrs. Morris Cheston, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Ronald Chrisrie
City of Cody
Dr. Carol C. Clark & Mr.

Charles Parkhurst
Mrs. M. R. Clark
Mr. Tom Clark
Clarks Fork Foundation
Ramon & Gwynne Clements

Jim & Anne Cleveland
Mr. & Mrs. Pier Clilford
Mrs. Doris S. Clymer
Cody Enterprise
Mrs. Henry H.R. Coe
Mr. Henrv H.R. Coe, Jr.
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Alfred Jacob Miller (1 810-l 874), Indians Fording a Rlver. Watercolor on pape\ 4 314

x 6 in. Bullalo Bill Historical Center, CodV, wY. Gilt ol The Coe Foundation.

Mr. Leigh F Coffin
Mr. & Mrs. Robert L. Cohen
Mr. Rupert Colmore
Mrs. Gertrude W. Conner-

In honor of her uncle
Cornelius Vanderbilt
Whitney

Mr. Peter C. Cook

Jack & Jane Cooney
Mr. & Mrs. Charles E. Cord, Jr.
Cowan Construction, Tnc.

Ms. Marsha K. Cox
Mr. & Mrs. DerekJ. Craighead
Mr. & Mrs. Wilbur R. Crawlord
Mr. David G. Crow
Dr. & Mrs. Charles Crowell III
CTA Architects Engineers
Mr. C. David Culver

Jim & Debby Curlovic
Mr. & Mrs. William Current
Mr. & Mrs. Bob Curtis
Mr. & Mrs. Curtis Cushman
Hannah & Stuart Cutshall
Mr. & Mrs. T P. Dalzell
Mr. & Mrs. Gregory N.

Dangleis
Mrs. Bettie Daniels
Mrs. Ruby K. Davies
Mrs. Marian Lyeth Davis
Mr. William H. Davison
Oliver & Goldy Dawson
Mr. James Decker
Delta Dental Plan of wyoming
Stephen A. Desantis M.D.
Mr. R. Alexander Desmuke
Mr. Rainer Dethloff
Mr Marvin Deuitch
Ms. Mary J. Dewers

Diakonia Travel
Mr Donald L. Diehl
Mr. & Mrs. Cortlandt S. Dietler
Mrs. Adele B. Dilschneider
Mr. & Mrs. George H. Dixon
Mr. Jim Dixon
Mr Rick Doden
Ms. Charlotte Donaldson
Howard & Joanne Donley
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Donner, Jr.
Double D Ranch Wear, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Richard E.

Doughty
Mrs. Catherine Douglas
Dr. & Mrs. Robert W Dowling
Ms. Katherine Y Downes
Ms. Nancy-Carroll Draper
Ms. Pat Dreyer
Mr. Ray Dulf
Dr. & Mrs. James H. Duke, Jr.
KatherineW&Ezekial R.

Dumke, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. J. Walter

Duncan, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. C. C. (Buddy)

Dunn, Jr.
Mr. Mark H. Durling
Eastgate Liquors
Edward R. Bazinet Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Bryan Edwards
Mr. Jerry L. Edwards
Ms. Barbara Egan
Mr. Donald L. Eirich
Mr. Larry Eldridge
Mr. Cliff Ericksen

Jennifer & Zen Ervin
Mr. & Mrs. Lloyd I Evans
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas L. Evans



Mr. & Mrs. Thomas M
Evans, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Carl F Eveleigh
Charles & Chase Ewald
Express Pipeline Partnership
Exxon Co., U.S.A.
Ms. Nicole Fairbanks
Fayez Sarofim & Co.
Mr. Gerry Feagles
Mr. & Mrs. Stanley Feller
Billy G. & Kathryn Fellers
Mr. & Mrs. Melvin M. Fillerup
Mr. J. Edwin Fitzgerald
Mr. Norman Flayderman
Stan & Mary Flitner
Mr. & Mrs Thomas Foley
Food Services of America
Mr. & Mrs. Jesse Foster
Mrs. Karl Frank
Mr. & Mrs. Russell M. Frankel
Alison & Bill Freehling
Don &Judy Frisby
Ms. Sarah M. Fritjofson
Ms. Suzanne M. Gadde
Mr. n C. Gaetje
Darcy A. & W Roberr Gaines
Mr. & Mrs. Benjamin H.

Gannetl
Mr. & Mrs. John R. Gardner
Mr. Robert F Garland
Mr. William C. Garlow
Mr. George R. Gassman
Mr. & Mrs Charles Gates
Mr Milo S. Gates
Mr. Denis J. Gaubert III
GBS LLC

Mr. & Mrs. Daniel F. Gerber
Mr. Nathan Gerber
The Glen Holden Family

Foundation
Mr WalterJ. Gluvna
Mrs. Charlotte M. Goerlich
Dr. & Mrs. William H.

Goetzmann
Ms Katherine Good
Mr. Walter F Goodman, Jr
Mr. & Mrs. ErnestJ.

Goppert, Jr.
Mr. Mark Gordon
Dr Walter H. Gould
Mr. & Mrs. Ivan T. Goyak
Mr. & Mrs. Robert W Graham
Mrs. Gordon S. Gray
Mr. Gregory Gray
Mr. William S. Gray
Mr. & Mrs. William S. Gray
Mr. & Mrs. Warren Greatbatch
Mr. & Mrs. Pete C. Grissom
Mr. & Mrs. Richard

Haberstroh
Mrs. Emma R. Hagberry
Dr. & Mrs. C. F Haines, Jr
Mr. & Mrs. Richard Hall
Hall & Hall. Inc.
S. Halmos Family Foundarion
Mr. L. W. Hamilton III
Jack & Deanna Hanes
Mr. & Mrs Don K. Hanna
Mr Carl C. Hansen
Dr. Richard C. Hansen DDS
Ms. Margaret Hardee
Ms. Marguerite D. Hark

Harriet & Edson Spencer-
Fund of The Minneapolis
Foundation

Mr. Michael Harrison
Peter H. & Elizabeth Hassnck
Mrs Bonnie M (Long)

Hawkins
Mr & Mrs. Will H. Hays, Jr
Dick & Joanna Heckert
The Herman Family
Dr. & Mrs. Lee K. Hermann
Mr. & Mrs. William D. Hewit
Mr. James W. Hewitt
Mr. & Mrs. Rick Heyes
Miss Vernetta Hidde
Mr. & Mrs. Richard W Higgins
Mrs. Joy R Hilhard
Mr. George C. Hixon
Nancy &Jim Hoak
Leonard & Mary Lou Hoeft
Mr. Roger W. Hollander
Mr & Mrs. Richard L. Hollow
Ms. Marianne Holmes
Mr. & Mrs. Pete Honnen
Mr. & Mrs. Alan F. Horn
Mr. Jerry W Housel

John & Linda Housel
Mr. & Mrs. Michael Howald
Mr. & Mrs. Howell H. Howard
Winston & Peg Howard
Mr. Peter C. Howe &

Ms. Elizabeth V. Brown
Mr. Kelly Howie
Mr. Roy Huffington
Thomas A. & Karen E. Huge
Mr. & Mrs. Ed Hughes

Mr. Gomer E Hughes, Jr.
David & Cynthia Hummel
Mr. & Mrs. Warren L. Hunter
Hunter Woodworks, lnc. -

Wm. (Brll), RuthJ Hunter
Mr. & Mrs. Wilson Hurley
Mr & Mrs. E. J. Husemann
John & Anne Huston
Tom &Jeana Hutchrnson
Mr. James H. Hutchison
IBM International Foundation
Tom & Bonnie lmburgia
Mr. & Mrs. Jerome J. Jacobson
Mr. Gordon Jacquemin
Mr. Harold James
Mrs Meri .Jaye
Mr. & Mrs. George H Jewell
Mr. Darrell Johnson
Mr. George F Johnson
Mr. Scott Johnson
Dr. & Mrs. Bo Johnson
Lora &. Alan Jolley
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph W Jones
Mr & Mrs. T J. Jones, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Edward C. Joullian
Mr. & Mrs. Charles A.

Juden, Jr.

Just So Charitable Foundation
Dr Narayana V. Kandula &

Dr. Suseelamma R.

Kandula
Mr. Jay I. Kanter
Ms. Doneene J. Kaulman
Mr. Carl Kaupp
KB Commercial Producrs
Mrs Erma Gene Keeley
Ms. Laura Keith
Pat & Connie Keller
Kelly Inn
Mr. & Mrs. John W. Kelsey
Paul S. & Thomas N. Keltner
Mr. & Mrs. Frank Kenna
Mr. & Mrs. Leo J Kenney'
Tom & Emily Kerley
Ms. BeverlyJ. Ketter
Mr. Peter B. Kibbee
Mr. & Mrs. Robert H.

Kieckhefer
Mr Jerry King & Ms. Kimberly

King
Ms. Irene C. Kite
Mrs. Josephine Klein
Ms. Susan G Kline
Mr. Carroll S Klingelhofer III
Mr. Peter L. Knight
Mr. & Mrs. W. H. D.

Koerner III
Mr & Mrs. Steven Kogan
Dr. & Mrs. Frank Kopecky
Ms. Amy Kraft'McKhann
Ms. Evelyn H. Krusko
Mr. John Ruzara
Ms. Jane Kyle
Mr Boone L. La Grange
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Untitled. Ledger art depicting lile of Spofted Horse. Bulfalo Bill Historical Center, Cody, WY.



Mr. & Mrs. David J. Ladd
Mr. E. Cody Laird, Jr.
Mrs. Florence C. Lamb
Mr. Merwyn E. Lancaster
Lane Ranch Company
Mr. & Mrs. Robert L. Largura
Mr. Chas. R. Larkin
Mr. Robin E. Larson
Mr. John C. Laughlin
Mr. J. W Lawler
Mr. James R. Lawson
Ms. Christy Lee & Mr. William

Pope
Mr. & Mrs. Roben Legnini
Mr. B. Richard Lennington
Mr. & Mrs. Douglas M. Lesage
Mr Bruce Leven
Mr. Bruce H. Lien
Life Enrichment Foundation
H. A. &. Mary Linton
Mr. & Mrs. Edmund W

Littlefield
Don & Connie Livingston
Bill & Molly Long
Mr. & Mrs. Phil V. Long
Mr. Neal L. Longanbach
Mr. John Love
Robert & Karen Lovejoy
Alan V. & Melanie M. Lovelace
Mr. Vincent Lucchesi
David Lukens, M.D.
Mr. & Mrs. L. G. Lundvall

Jean & Henry Lush
Mr. G. Robert Lyles
Mr. Herbert A. Lyman
Mr. & Mrs. Wilford C. Lyon, Jr.
Mrs. Jean Bronson Mahoney
Dr. & Mrs. Srephen E. Mainini
Maitland & Associates, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. RaymondJ. Malloy
Dale & Lorie Malody
Mr. & Mrs. Gary Mammel
Mr. & Mrs. Greayer

Mansfield-Jones, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Ed Marcom
Ms. Dorothea H. Marica
Mr. Colin Marshall
Mr. & Mrs. J. Landis Martin
Mr. & Mrs. Robert H. Martin
Mike & Pam Masterson
David & Martha Matloff
Lr. Col. & Mrs. Arthur R.

Matson
Mr. & Mrs. George G.

Matthews
Maupintour, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Allred M.

McCauley
Walter & Carol McCauley
Mr. & Mrs. Bruce McDonald
Willis McDonald IV
CIark & Chrisry Linders -

McDonald's
Susan & Alan McDowell
Mr. & Mrs. Glendon E. McFate
Mr. John McKee

John & Julie McKillop
Mrs. Nancy N. Mclamore

Mr. Eugene Bramlett Mclaurin
Mr. John J. McMullen
Medical lndemnity Group,

Inc.
Ron & Tina Meeker .'

Meeker Insurance
Agency, Inc.

Mrs. .Jane Cody Meincke
Mr. Don Melvin
Mr. &- Mrs. Ray Mentock
Mr. Tim Mercer
Ms. Barbara H. Merrill-

In the name of Kay
Siggins

Mr. Richard Meserve
Mr. & Mrs. Wendell Mesker
Mr. & Mrs. Wayne F.

Messenger
Mr. & Mrs. Wes Metheney
Ms. Julienne Michel
Mr. Elmer F. Mikkelson, Jr.

Mike & Barbara Milkey
Mr. Richard B. Worley &

Ms. Leslie A. Miller
Mr. & Mrs. Orville C. Miller, Jr.
Mr. Terry L. Miller
Mr. Wayne Miller
Mr Wilbur V. Mills
Mr. & Mrs. H. C. Minter
Mr. & Mrs. James B. Minter
Mr. Terry R. Mohney
Lee &. Peg Molesworth
Mr. John Grey Montgomery
Mr Thomas A. Monzo
Ms. Christie T Moore
Ms. Mary F. Moore
Mrs. J. Maxwell Moran
Mr. &" Mrs. James M.

Moran, Jr.
Mr & Mrs. Glenn E. Morris
Mr. J. M. Morrison
Col. & Mrs. James L. Morrison
Mr. Richard M. Morrow
W B. & M. G. Morrow
Mr. Coleman Morton
Beverly & Woody Mosch
Mr. Dumaresq Moseley
Mr. John A. Mullenmaster
Mr. James P Munger
Ester Johansson Murray
Mr. & Mrs. Lee Myers
Mr. Donald R. Nafus
Bob & Pat Nagel
Nedra Matteucci's Calleries
Dr. & Mrs. Van Kirke Nelson
New West Furniture
Mr. & Mrs. Allan P Newell
Miller & Jeanerte Nichols
Ms. Wilma Nielsen
Mr. .James E. Nielson
Gregory & Lisa Nohl
Dr. William B. Norman
Northern Gardens
Mr. Jerry O'Connell
Col. & Mrs. Edgar A. O'Hair
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas H.

O'Leary
Mr. & Mrs. Robert W Obreiter

Old Baldy Club
Old West Trail Association
Olin Corporation Charitable

Trust
Olive Glenn Golf & Country

Club

Jane & Knox Pannill
Mr. Richard E. Pate III
Hunter & Charlotte Patrick

Jerry & Denise Payne
Peterson Quality Office

Furniture & Equipment
Mr. & Mrs Eric T. Philippi
Mr. Benjamin C. Pierce
Mr. Gerard Pilley
Pinnacle Bank
Mr. William Q. Pirie
PJM Interconnection
Richard & Marion Pohrt
Mr. & Mrs. Jerome Poland
Rick & Ann Pole
Ms. Kathleen Pollard
Gary & Melissa Porter
Mr. Joseph B. Prado
Mr. & Mrs. B. Byron Price
Mr. & Mrs. William H. Price II
Mr. & Mrs. Jay Proops
Mr. Paul R. Provost
The Prudential Foundation
Michael & Linda Pugliese
The Quaker Oars Foundation
Mr. &- Mrs. Robert Quenon
Questar Corporation
Mr. Rudy Quillian
Mr. & Mrs. Harold C.

Ramseq Jr.

James & Susan Raymond
Ms. Linda Raynolds &

Mr. Ellah Cobb
Mr. Robert Rayzak
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas E.

Reilly, Jr.
Remington Arms Company,

Inc.
Mr. Richard A. Reyes
Mr. & Mrs. Charles G. Rice
Mr. Angus E. Richardson
Mr. & Mrs. Cecil S. Richardson
Victor.J. & Marilyn Riley
Mr. Leandro P Rizzuto
The Robert M. Lee Foundation
Mr. S. O. Roberts
Ms. Marion Swett Robinson
Robirds & Wheeler. LC

Mr. Laurance S. Rockefeller
Rocky Mtn. Hilluest Spring

Water
Mr. Arnold H. Rohlfing
Mr. Howard J. Romanek
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Rosebraugh
Mr. & Mrs. Jack Rudin
Mr. Ronald Rumfield
Bronson C. & Diana S.

Rumsey
Rusk Gun Shop, Inc.
Mr. Nicholas G. Rutgers
Mr. & Mrs. Thad Rybka
Sacramento Custom Tours

Mr. & Mrs Arne G. Sandberg
Dr. Robert M. Sandfort
Mr. Clilton C. Schafer
Mr. MarkJ. Schaler
Diana M. & Richard C.

Schafer
Mr. & Mrs. Otto C. Schnauber
Mr. &. Mrs. Richard J.

Schwartz
Mr & Mrs. William Self
Mr. William B. Sheets
Mrs. Celeste B. Shepard
Sheridan Capital LLC
Mrs. Fritz Shurmur
Alan and Ann Simpson
Mr. & Mrs. Bill Simpson
Dr. & Mrs. Peter K. Simpson
Mr. & Mrs. Richard D.

Siragusa
Mr. & Mrs. Steve Sklar
Mr. Jack Smith
Mr. & Mrs. Leon W. Smith
Mr. Paul A. Smith
Mr. & Mrs. Robert G. Smith
Mr. & Mrs. Ronald L. Smith
Mr. & Mrs. Edward L.

Smithwick, Jr.
Mr. Ralph Sorensen
Mr. E. L. Souder
Ms. Sue Sporer & Mr. Ryan

Torkelson
Mrs. Margaret A. Srour
Mr. & Mrs. Robert F Stager

John C. Stears, M.D.
Mr Dick W. Steck
Sterling International Tours
Mr. & Mrs. B. Albert Stern, Jr.
Mr. James M. Stevens
Mr. & Mrs. Robert W. Stevens
Mr. John M. Stewar[
Ms. Pamela Stockton
The George B. Storer

Foundation. Inc.
Mr. Tony Storniola
The Hon. & Mrs. Robert D.

Stuart, Jr.
Mr. John C. Sullivan
Mr. Larry Sullivan
Mr. Linden G. Swedeen
Col. Robert T. Sweeney
Miss T Sweeting
Mr. & Mrs. James G. Taggart
Mrs. Phyllis J. Taggart
Mr. & Mrs. T E. Taplin
Mr. Francis Tarpy
Mr. & Mrs. Harold R. Tate

David & Marilyn Taylor
Mr. James B. Taylor
Mr. W.M. Teegarden

John & Mary Ann Mullen
Teolilo

Dr. Jack Thielen
Thiokol Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Larry Thomas
Mrs. Thyra G. Thomson
Bill & Toni Thomson
Mr. Wesley Thring
Cal & Margot Belden Todd



Mr. William A. Torrey
Trail Creek Partners
Mr. Timothy J. Travis
Triple J. Ranch, Cody, WY
U.S West Foundation
Mr. Edward E. Ulrich
Union Pacific Corporation
Mr. William Van Orsdel
Mr. & Mrs. Harry E. Van Tuyl
Mr. Victor Vance
Mr. Thurston VanHorn
Mr. John E Vollmer, Jr.
Paul & Margot Von Gontard
Mr. & Mrs. John T von Stade
W C. Matthews & Co.. Inc
Waddell Trading Company

Mr. Tom Wade, Jr.
Ms. Margo Grant Walsh
Mr. Steve Walters
Mr. George T Warman, Jr.
Mr & Mrs. Rawleigh

Warner, |r.
Mr. James A. Watson
Mr. & Mrs. C. E. Webster
Mr. & Mrs. Randall Weeks
Ms. Anna Weishaus-

In honor of Peg Coe
May & Billy Weiss
Mr. 6. Mrs. William D. Weiss
Mr. Stuart M. Welier
Mr. Robert W. Welsh
Mr. Warren Welsh

Jerry & Sonja Wenger
Ms. Rebecca West
Mr. & Mrs. Otto K Wetzel, Jr
Ms. Peggy L. Werzel
Whitlock Motors
Mrs. Marylou Whitney
Mr. Roy Whitson
Mr & Mrs. Warren T.

Whitraker
Mr. & Mrs. K F. Wiesemann
Mr. Ed Wilcken
Wilder Enterprises
Mr. & Mrs. George H. Will
Mr. & Mrs. John Willard
Mr. Paul W Willden
Mr & Mrs. Pierre H. Willette

Mr. Ross T Willey
Mr. James H Williams
Mr. William J Williams
Mr. R. L. Wrlson
Mr. & Mrs. J. D. Winzenried
Mr. Donald E. Wise
Mr. & Mrs. John R. Woods
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas G.

Woods, Jr.
Ms. Peggy A Woodworth
Mr. Waymon D Wooten
Mr. Ben Wright
Mark & Heather Yeager
Ms. Anne Young
Zapltn - Lampert Gallery

Joseph Henry Sharp (1 859-1 953), Crow lndlans on Horseback in Tipi VilLage, black and whjre photograph. 11 x I 3 7/8 jn. Bullalo Bill t-listorical Center, Cody, Wy



s500,000 AND ABovE

The Grainger Foundation, Inc.

s25o,ooo - ssoo,ooo

Ms. Nancy-Carroll Draper

s100,000 - s250,000

Mr. & Mrs. Silas S. Cathcart
Mr. Robert L. Hayden &

Mrs. Virginia Boal Hayden
The Hearst Foundation, Inc.
Dick &Joanna Heckert
Mr. William B. Ruger
Mr. & Mrs. William Self
May and Billy Weiss
Mr. & Mrs. William D. Weiss
Mrs. Marylou Whitney
Wyoming Arts Council

$50,000 - s100,000

Cody Country Chamber ol Commerce
Mr. & Mrs. Lloyd ). Evans
Mr. & Mrs. Alan F. Horn
Marathon Oil Company
Olin Corporation Charitable Trust
Park County Travel Council
Mr. Laurance S. Rockefeller
Mr. & Mrs. Larry Sheerin
Shell Oil Company Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Harold R. Tate
USX Foundation. lnc.

$20,000 - $5o,oo0

Mr. & Mrs. Jerry Blank
Mr. & Mrs. D. Harold Byrd, Jr.
Mr & Mrs. Wallace C. Dayton
Mr. & Mrs. Cortlandt S. Dietler
Mr. & Mrs. Charles W Duncan, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Edmund W. Littlefield
Mrs. J. Maxwell Moran
National Endowment lor the Arts
Mr. James E. Nielson
Mr. David Rockefeller, Sr.

Mr. & Mrs. RichardJ. Schwartz
Alan and Ann Simpson
Mrs. Margo W. Stratford
The Summerlee Foundation
Thomas M. Evans, Jr Foundation
The Tucker Foundation
Ms. Margo Grant Walsh

s10,000 , s20,000

1957 Charity Trust
The Alice Busch Gronewaldt Foundation,

Inc.-ln honor ol Byron & Sissy
Thomas

Bureau of Land Management
City of Cody
Mrs. Gerrrude W. Conner-

In honor of her uncle Cornelius
Vanderbilt Whitney

Erwin E. Smith Foundation
Fayez Sarolim & Co.
The George B. Storer Foundation, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Curt Gowdy
Helen K. and Arthur E. Johnson

Foundation
Marian and Speros Martel Foundation
Mary A. H. Rumsey Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Leverett Miller
Ms. Mary F Moore
Pacilicorp
Paul Stock Foundation
The Robert S. & Grayce B. Kerr

Foundation. Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Robert L. Stone
The Hon. & Mrs. Robert D. Stuart, Jr.
Mr. John C. Sullivan
Mr. & Mrs. John R. Woods
Wurtele Family Fund of the Minneapolis
Foundation

s5,000 . s10,000

555 Manufacturing, Inc.
American Capital Access
Anonymous
Ms. Sue Anschutz-Rodgers
Dr. & Mrs. Gerry Asher
Mr. & Mrs. H. Brewster Atwater, .Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Gordon H. Barrows
Mr. & Mrs. Quintin Blair
Chevron USA Production Company
Mrs. Henry H.R. Coe
Dr. Michael D. Coe
Ceneral Service Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Ernest J. Goppert, Jr.
Mrs. Mary Belle Grant
Ms. Marguerite D. Hark
Harriet & Edson Spencer Fund

of the Minneapolis Foundation
Mr. Preston B, Hotchkis
The Lightner Sams Foundation of WY,

Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. John J. McAtee
National Shooting Sports Foundation, Inc
Mr. Ralph S. O'Connor
Pilot Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Louis F Polk, Jr.
The Roy A. Hunt Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph S. Sample
Smlth's Food & Drug Stores
Sturm. Ruger & Co.. Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Allan R. Tessler
Trail Creek Partners
The True Foundation
Ms. Evelyn Twigg-Smith
The William S. & Lora Jean

Kilroy Foundation
Winchester Club ol America

sl,ooo - s5,000

Mr. & Mrs. Francis H. Abbott, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Albert Andrews, Jr.
Anonymous
Mr. & Mrs. Daniel C. Arnold
Bank ofJackson Hole
The Baxter Allegiance Foundation
Anson &.Jean Beard, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph C. Bennett
Big Horn Basin Orthopaedic Clinic, PC

Big Horn Federal Savings & Loan-Cody
Blair Hotels
Oliver C. & Nan E. Boileau
Mr. & Mrs. Joris Brinkerhofl
Mr. Wiley T Buchanan III
The Bugas Fund
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Foundation
Clarks Fork Foundation
Ms. Suzanna W. Cody
Mr. & Mrs. Robert L. Cohen
Mr. & Mrs. Norman Cohn
Mr. & Mrs. Barron G. Collier II
Mr. Peter C. Cook
Mr. & Mrs. Curtis Cushman
Mr. & Mrs. John T Dorrance III
Mr. Sean Dufly
Dr. & Mrs. James H. Duke, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. J. Walter Duncan, Jr.
First National Bank & Trust - Cody Branch
Fortin Foundation of Florida, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Alan F Fox
Mr. & Mrs. Benjamin H. Gannett
Mr. Wllliam C. Garlow
Mr. Walter F Goodman, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Buck Graham
Graham Motor Company - Cody
Mr. & Mrs. Patrick A. Grant
Mr. & Mrs. Warren Greatbatch
Hall & Hall. Inc.
Hon. & Mrs. Clillord P Hansen
Mrs. Joy R. Hilliard
Mr. George C. Hixon
Mr. Roger W. Hollander
Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth Holmes
Mr. Jerry W. Housel
Mr. & Mrs. Walter F. Imhofl
Johnson & Johnson Family of Companies
Mr. & Mrs. foseph W Jones
Mr. & Mrs. Edward C. Joullian
Pat & Connie Keller
Mr. & Mrs. Charles G. Kepler
Mr & Mrs. Henry S. Kingman, Jr.
Mr L. Patton Kline
Mr. & Mrs. David Knight
Mr. & Mrs. Walter Koelbel
Ms. Christy Lee & Mr. William Pope
Ms. Florence Lemle
Mr. B. Richard Lennington
Mr. David M. Leuschen
Life Enrichment Foundation



Mr. John Love
Mr. & Mrs. David MacKenzie
Mr. & Mrs. David D. MacMillan
Mrs. Robert L. Manning
Mr. & Mrs. J. Landis MarLin
Walter & Carol McCauley
Mr. Wrllis McDonald IV
Susan & Alan McDowell
Ms. Katharine L. McKenna &

Mr. Mark Braunstein
Ms. Julienne Michel
Mr. & Mrs. James B. Minter
Lee & Peg Molesworth
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas H. O'Leary
Petrie Family Foundation, Inc.
Pinnacle Bank
Richard & Marion Pohrt
Mr. & Mrs. Harold C. Ramser, Jr.
VictorJ. & Marilyn Riley
Mr. & Mrs. Jack Rudin
Bronson C. & Diana S. Rumsev
Mr. & Mrs. Lou Scheimer
Shoshone First Bank
Mr & Mrs. William Sinclaire
Mr. & Mrs. Edson W Spencer
Mr & Mrs. David Stokes
Amb. & Mrs. Michael J. Sullivan
Mrs. T. E. Taplin
lhrget Stores
Mr. & Mrs. Neal E. Tokowirz
U.S. West Foundation
University of Wyoming Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Rawleigh Warner, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. C. E. Webster
Mr. & Mrs. Randall Weeks
Mrs. William E Weiss
Dr. & Mrs. Frank D. Werner
Western Real Estate
Mr. Wheelock Whitney
Mr. & Mrs. Richard R. Wilder
Mr. Don Wilkening
Mr. & Mrs. foel M. Wilkinson

Mr. William J. Williams
Mr. & Mrs. J. D. Winzenried
Wolfensohn Family Foundation
Wyoming Council for the Humanities
Y-Tex Corporation
Mark & Heather Yeager
Ms. Anne Young
Young Presidenrs' Organizarion -

New England Chapter

s500 - s1,000

Mr. James C. Alban III
Mr. Vernon Armour
Dr. & Mrs. Lenox D. Baker
Big Horn Galleries
l./rr Zach K. Brinkerhoff, Jr
Mrs. Christian Bunning
Mr. & Mrs Paul V. Cali
Mrs Helen Cashman
Mr. & Mrs. Glen Charles
Ramon & Gwynne Clements
Mr. Henry H R Coe, Jr.
Dr & Mrs. Charles Crowell III
CTA Architects Engineers
Mr. Joseph F. Cullman III
Hannah & Stuart Cutshall
Mr.&Mrs.TPDalzell
Adele B. Dilschneider
Edward R. Bazinet Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Carl F Eveleigh
Exxon Co., U.S.A.
Dr. & Mrs. Paul Fees
Fentress Bradburn Architects, Ltd.
Fremont Motor Company
Mrs. Joseph E. Hall
Mr. & N{rs William C. Harvin
Mr. & Mrs. Peter H. Hassrick
Mr. & Mrs. Van Zandt Hawn
Mr. & Mrs. James F Hayes

Alfred Jacob Miller (l 810-1 874),

Wild Horses. c. 1837. wash

drawing on blue paper, 8 1 /2 x
13 314 in. Bullalo Bill Historical

Center, Cody, WY Gift of The

Coe Foundation.

Mr. & Mrs. Will H. Hays, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Wayne W. Hennes
Mr. & Mrs. William D. Hewit
Ms. Letitia M. Hickox
Mr. Kelly Howie
Thomas A. & Karen E. Huge
Mr. & Mrs. Ed Hughes
Mr. E. J Husemann
Mr. & Mrs. Robert J. Keith, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. William L. King
Kodiak Enterprises, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. W. H. D. Koerner III
Mr. & Mrs. Grant Larson
Mr. James R. Lawson
Ms. Christy Love
Alan V. & Melanie M. Lovelace
Mr & Mrs. Wilford C. Lyon, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. George G. Matthews
Mr. Wilbur V. Mills
Ms. Florence Murphy
Dr. & Mrs. Van Kirke Nelson
New West Furniture
Mr. & Mrs. Allan P Newell
Northwest College

Jane & Knox Pannill
Mr. & Mrs. B. Byron Price
Mr. & Mrs. William H. Price II
The Proud Cut Saloon
Mr. & Mrs. Ken Puryear
The Quaker Oats Foundation
Mr. & Mrs. Richard D. Siragusa
Mr. & Mrs. Dean Swift
Mr. & Mrs. James G. Taggart
Bill & Toni Thomson
Mr. & Mrs. Ron Thring
Mr & Mrs. Jack Turnell
Mr. Chuck Valeschini
Ms. Mary W Vaughan
Mrs. John T. von Stade

Jerry & Sonja Wenger
Mr. John Williamson
Mrs. Gertrude B Wright
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I /r embershio orovides the loundation for all activities at the Buffalo Bill Historical Center. The contributions from our members in

IVItnnn roralled more rhar 5500,000, reaching a new milestone for the program. Space limitations prohibit us from listing all our

members, but the donations of more than 2,500 individual and family/household members are no less important that those listed here.

With a total of more rhan 4,500 contributing to membership at the BBHC, we are grateful for every gilt you give to us.

PAHASKA LEAGUE

Mr. Victor Alexander, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Jonathan Been
Wiley T Buchanan, III

Foundation
Mr & Mrs. Barron G. Collier II
Dr. & Mrs. Charles Crowell III
Mr. & Mrs. Michael Del

Castello
Mr. Cortlandt S. Dietler
Mr. & Mrs. Wesley M.

Dixon, Jr.
Ms. Nancy-Carroll Draper
Mr. & Mrs. Robin L. Farkas

Mr. Crawlord Gordon
Mrs. Virginia Boal Hayden &

Mr. Robert L. Hayden
Mr. & Mrs. George C. Hixon
Mr. Roger W. Hollander
Mr. & Mrs. Alan F Horn
Mr. L. Patton Kline
The Carl & Marilyn Malkmus

Foundation. Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Peter Manigault
Mr. Willis McDonald IV
Mrs. J. Maxwell Moran
Mr. James E. Nielson
Mrs. Nancy D. Petry
Mr. & Mrs. Louis F. Polk, Jr.
Mrs. Hazel M. Robertson
Mr. William B. Ruger, Sr.

Mr. & Mrs. Robert Ryan
Ms. Evelyn Twigg-Smith
Mr. & Mrs. John E. Velde, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. William D. Weiss
Mrs. William E Weiss
Mr. & Mrs. Carl M. Williams

BENEFACTOR

Ms. Sue Anschutz-Rodgers
Mr. & Mrs. Gordon H. Barrows
Mr. James L. Bellis
Mr. & Mrs. Paul V. Cali
Mr.&Mrs.TPDalzell
Mrs. Evelyn D. Donaldson
Dr. & Mrs. James H. Duke, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Raymond T.

Duncan
Mr. & Mrs. Carl F. Eveleigh
Mr. & Mrs. Jack Fritz
Mr. & Mrs. Richard E. Heckert
Mr. Richard Heise
Mrs. Lucy Rosenberry Jones
Mr. & Mrs. Robert J. Keith, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. William J. Kelly
Mr. & Mrs. William G. Kerr
Mr. & Mrs. Alan Lovelace
Mr. & Mrs. Ignacio E. Lozano
Mr. & Mrs. E. T Meredith lll
Mr. & Mrs. James B. Minter
Dr. & Mrs. Van Kirke Nelson
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas H.

O'Leary
Mr. Richard Oneslager, Sr.

Amb. & Mrs. Robert H.
Phinny

Mr. Trevor H. S. Povah
Mr. & Mrs. William H. Price II
Mr. & Mrs. Byron L. Ramsing
Mr. & Mrs. Victor Riley
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph S. Sample
Mr. & Mrs. w. R. Scarlett III
Mr. & Mrs. Herbert

Schinderman
Mr. & Mrs. Edward A.

Schwartz
Mr. & Mrs. RichardJ.

Schwartz
Mr. & Mrs. Edson W Spencer
Mr. & Mrs. B. Albert Stern, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Leighton Steward
Mr. & Mrs. Robert L. Stone
Mr. & Mrs. Peter Storer
The Hon. & Mrs. Robert D.

Stuart, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Jack Turnell
Mr. & Mrs. C. E. Webster
Mr. Peter M. Wege
Ms. Anne Young

SUSTAINER

Mr. & Mrs. Francis H.
Abbou, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Lowell E. Baier
Mr. Judson C Ball
Mr. Edward Bazinet
Mr. & Mrs. Anson M.

Beard, .Jr.

Mrs. Marinell Boydston
Mrs. Helen Cashman
Mr. & Mrs. Hiram S. Cody, jr.
Dr Michael D. Coe
Mr. & Mrs. Miles Collier
Mrs. George Crockett
Mr. & Mrs. William Dingus
Ms. Connie Dover
Mr. & Mrs William B. Gannett
Rev. Daphne B. Grimes
Mr. L. W. Hamilton III

Hon. & Mrs. Cliflord P
Hansen

Mr. & Mrs. William R..jensen
Mr. & Mrs. Doug Johnson
Rev. & Mrs. Patterson Keller
Mr. &. Mrs. David Knight
Mr. & Mrs. W. H. Koerner III
Mr. Wilbur V. Mills
Mr. & Mrs. Allan P Newell
Mr. & Mrs. John H. Newton
Mr. & Mrs. George R.

O'Connor
Mr. & Mrs. Brian D. Pfeifler
Mr. Rulfin Prevost
Mr. & Mrs Stewart Resnick
Mr. William B. Ruger, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Richard C. Schafer
Dr. Frank H. Schmidt, M.D. &

Dr. Catherine Schmidt
Mr. & Mrs. Richard D.

Siragusa
Ms. Barbara E. Smith
Mr. & Mrs. Donald M. Smith
Mr. & Mrs. Bruce B. Taylor
Mr. W.M. Teegarden
Mr. & Mrs. William J.

Thomson II
Mr. & Dr. S. J. Tilden
Mr. & Mrs. Calvin Todd
Mr. & Mrs. H. A. True III
Mrs. Jean D. True
Mr. Tim White
Mr. William J. Williams
Mr. & Mrs. John B. Winsor

SPONSOR

Dr. & Mrs. John L. Allen
Ms. Virginia L. Allen
Mr. Michael N. Altman
Ms. Dianna Archuleta
Mr. Daniel C. Arnold
Mr. Harold G. Arnold &

Mr. Thomas J. Arnold
Mr. Lloyd A Bailey
Mr. & Mrs. Charles W. Baker
Mr & Mrs. H. R. Barr
Mr. Arthur C. Bedner
Mr. & Mrs. George Bermant
Mr. Joe W. Bishop
Mr. Vernon L. Blair
Mr. & Mrs. Jerry Blank
Mr. & Mrs. Hans E.R. Bosch
Mr. & Mrs. Len Braarud
Mr. & Mrs. Howard B.

Camden

Dr & Mrs. Leonard Carpi
Mr. & Mrs. Win L. Carter
Dr. L. Charles Christensen,

M.D.
Mr. & Mrs. Ramon G.

Clements
Mr. & Mrs. Warren T Cowgill
Mr. & Mrs. Steven R. Cranfill
Mr. & Mrs. Curtis Cushman
Mr. & Mrs. R. S. Cutshall
Mr. & Mrs. Richard M.

Davis, Jr.
Mr. Douglas L. Dennis
Mrs. Carol T des Cognets &

Mr. Archer B. des
Cognets

Mr. & Mrs. Edmund A.

Donnan, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Donneq Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. James P Dorr
Mr. & Mrs. John T

Dorrance III
Mr. & Mrs. LaMar T Empey
Mr. & Mrs. Charles Ewald
Mr. & Mrs. Junior L. Fendt
Mr. & Mrs. Alan F Fox
Mr. & Mrs. Fosler Friess
Mr. & Mrs. Michael Frost
Mr. James Geier
Mr. Leonard J. Goedken, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Walter F

Goodman, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Frank H.

Goodyear, Sr.

Mr. & Mrs. Ernest J.
Goppert, Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Robert E. Gradle
Mr. & Mrs. J. Leonard Graham
Mr. Richard Hamilton
Mr. & Mrs. Robert H. Hanson
Mrs. Virginia Harris
Ms. Paricia P. Hayes'Stanley
Mr. Loren W. Hershey
Ms. Letitia M. Hickox
Mr. William H. Hornby
Mr. & Mrs. Howell H. Howard
Ms. Linn H. Howard
Mr. & Mrs. Ed Hunter
Mr. & Mrs. Jerome J. Jacobson
Mr. Bill |eanes, Jr.
Mr. George F. Johnson
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph W Jones
Mr. & Mrs. H. W. Julien
Mr. & Mrs. Leo J. Kenney
Mr. & Mrs. Charles G. Kepler
Mr. & Mrs. Donald L. King



Mrs. Joan G. Kinne
Mr. Daniel Klaes
Mr. George J. Kraynick
Mrs. Florence C. Lamb
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Legnini
Mr. & Mrs. Alan E. Leske
Ms. Julia S. Lewis
Mr. Robert Liberman
Mr. & Mrs. Clark Linders
Ms. Frances Locke
Ms. Christy Love
Mr. & Mrs. Wilford C. Lyon, Jr.
Mr. T C. Lyster
Dr. & Mrs. Srephen E. Mainini
Mr. & Mrs. Harold Mankin II
Mr. & Mrs. Ned Martin
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas R

Masterson
The Hon. Marquita M. Maytag
Mr. Gordon Cleaves

McDannald
Mrs. Mary Lou H. McDonald
Mr. & Mrs. Louis McNair
Mr. David B. Mellor
Mr. & Mrs. Orville C. Miller, Jr.
Mr. Alan B. Minier & Ms. Mary

F Moore
Mr. & Mrs. Robert L. Mitchell
Mr. Terry R. Mohney
Mr. David Mullinax
Mr. & Mrs. Jeff Mummery
Mr. William E. Mussett, Jr.
Ms. Mary Ann Myers
Mr. & Mrs. Lee K. Nelson
Ms. Joanne Nielson
Mr. & Mrs. William M

Obering
Mr. & Mrs. J. Knox Pannill, Jr.
Mr. Julian Peraza
Mr. & Mrs. Trevor S. Povah
Mr. Paul R. Provost
Ms. Helene M. Pursley
Mr. & Mrs. Wes W. Reeves
Mr. Gregory L. Reynolds
Mr. James S. Rhodebeck
Mr. & Mrs. Robert C.

Robertson
Mr. Jack Sadler
Ms. Jane Schiff & Mr Sid

Moosnick
Mr. & Mrs. William Self
Mr. Jack Shaoul
Mr. & Mrs. Roger Sidwell
Mr. &- Mrs. Don Smithers
Mr, Elbert O. Sowerwine III
Mr. Ira Spanierman
Mr. Bradley D. Spitz
Mr. Dick W. Steck
Mr. & Mrs. Robert W. Stevens
Mrs. Margo W Stratford
Ms. Patricia Stuart
Amb. & Mrs. Michael J.

Sullivan
Mr. & Mrs. William H. Swann
Mr & Mrs. A. D. Swift
Mr. & Mrs. Christopher J.

'laggarr

Mr. & Mrs. Walter J Taylor
Mr. & Mrs. TimorhyJ. Travis
Mr. & Mrs. John S. Vietti
Mr. W. B. Vollbracht
Mr. & Mrs. Charles S. Weiss
Mr & Mrs. Jerry Wenger
Mr. Thomas Whalen
Mr.&Mrs W L Whiring
Mr. Rifton H. Wiggs
Mr. & Mrs. James A. Williams
Mr. Max Williams
Mr. & Mrs. Vernon B Willis
Mr. & Mrs. David A. Wulfing
Mr. & Mrs. Graydon E. Yester
Mr. & Mrs. Pierre Yperman
Mr. Richard L. Zellman
Mr. & Mrs. Gail Zimmerman,

Ph.D.

CENTENNIAL

Mr. Louis Adams
Mr. Eugene B Adkins
Mr. & Mrs. Stu Alan
Mr. & Mrs. Howard Alexander
Mrs. Carol Andrews
Mrs. Louise S. Ansberry
Dr. & Mrs. Edward H.

Arnold, Jr.
Mrs. Donna K. Badon
Mr. & Mrs. Alan J. Baer
Dr. & Mrs. Jelfrey R. Balison
Mr. Steve Ballard
Mr. & Mrs. Robert C. Balsam
Mr. & Mrs. James E. Bama
Mr. Rotchford L. Barker
MS. Vicki S. BaSS

Mr. Spencer Beal
Mr. & Mrs. Don Beaumont
Mr. & Mrs. Stuart A. Beloff
Mr. Richard L. Bennett
Mrs. Henry O. Benning
Mr. & Mrs. Edward L. Benson
Mr. Ronald H. Benson
Mr. & Mrs. Charles S. Berney
Mr. Carl Berryman III
Mr. & Mrs. Frederick Bevis
Mr. Jack L. Billhardt
Ms. Cathie B. Black
Mr. & Mrs. Lynn Blair
Mr. & Mrs. August Bodhaine
Mr. & Mrs. Oliver C.

Boileau, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Brad Bonner
Mr. & Mrs. Donald S.

Brinkman
Mr. & Mrs. Arnold Brown

Mr. & Mrs. George Brown
Mr. & Mrs. I. William

Brownlee
Mr. & Mrs. Robert C. Brumage
Mr. & Mrs. Charles P Brumder
Dr. Kurt S. Bucholz
Ms. Moya Bullis
Ms. Jenniler Burnham
Mr. & Mrs. David P Carlin
Mrs. Barbara Carlsberg
Mr. & Mrs. Chris Catsimanes
Mr. W J. Chamblin
Mr. & Mrs. Glen Charles
Mr. & Mrs. Ken L. Chase
Mr. & Mrs. J. E. Chenoweth
Mr. & Mrs. Bob G. Cherry
Mrs. Judy C. Childs
Church of St. Anthony
Mr & Mrs. Nick R. Cladis
Mr. Thomas G. Clarke
Mr. B. D. Claycomb
Mr. Kevin Clutter
Mr. George V. Coe
Mrs. Henry H.R. Coe
Mr. & Mrs. Henry H. Coe, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. William Cogswell
Dr. & Mrs. Norman A. Cohen
Dr. & Mrs. Lawrence A. Cone
Ms. Agnes A. Conley
Mr. John P Cooney, Jr.
Mr. Drury W Cooper III
Mr. & Mrs. Reid Cooper
Mr. & Mrs. Charles E. Cord, Jr.
Dr. & Mrs. Fritz CLrbin

Mr. & Mrs. James R. Daly
Damon Family
Mr. Gerry Danko
Mr. & Mrs. Robert D.

Davidson
Mr. Howard H. Davis
Mr. & Mrs. William Davis
Mr. & Mrs. Oliver M. Dawson
Mr. & Mrs. Peter R. Decker
Dr. E. G. DeForrest
Mr. Victor Della
Mr. R. Alexander Desmuke
Mr. Marvin Deuitch
Mrs. Josephine Dewitt
Diamond Eighty-Eight Ranch
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Dickey III
Mr John DiSanti
Dr. Kathleen A. Divincenzo &

Mr. Robert N. Reed
Mr. & Mrs. James E. Dixon
Mr. Donald D Dodge, Jr.
Mr Jelf Dolan
Ms. Charlotte Donaldson
Mrs. Judith Donaldson
Mr. Bob Drummond
Ms. Donna Dubrow
Mr. Barry Duck
Mr. Stephen P Duermeyer

Mrs. Gloria S. Duffy
Mrs. Mary Duggleby
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas C. Ehlers
Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth Elison
Mr. Steven Elliott
Ms. Sunderland W. Everstill
Mr. & Mrs. Keith Fahrenholz
Ms. Mary G. Farland
Mr. & Mrs. James Farrell
Mr. John F. Farrell, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. John Feeley
Mr. & Mrs. William Fetterhofl
Mr. Fred S. Fiedler
Mr. Lawrence Field
Fighting Bear Antiques
Mr. & Mrs. David L. Filkin
Ms. Mary Lou Finney
Mr. & Mrs. A. Brooks

Firestone
Mr. Tom Fitzsimmons & Mrs.

Doneen Fitzsimmons
Ms. Brenda R. Flam
Mr. Norman Flayderman
Mr. & Mrs. Stan Flitner
Mr. & Mrs. David Foss
Mr. Bill Frazier
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Friend
Mr. & Mrs. Donald R. Frisby
Mr. Robert W Frisby
Mr Lynn C. Fritz
Mr. & Mrs. Don Fry
Mr. & Mrs. William B. Gannett
Mr. Laurence H. Gardner II
Mr. Allan Garlinkle
Mr. & Mrs. Robert F. Garland
Gary's Vacuum & Rubber

Stamp
Mr. Herbert L. Gaynor
GBS LLC

Mr. Paul E. Gehlhausen
Dr. & Mrs. David R. Gelbart
Mr. & Mrs. Daniel F. Gerber
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas E. Glass
Mr. & Mrs. Wayne E. Glenn
Mr. & Mrs. William S. Godlrey
Mr. & Mrs. Robert O. Goerlich
Dr. Walter H Gould
Mr. & Mrs. Larry Grissom
Mr. & Mrs. Gary K. Gunstrom
Mr. & Mrs. Leslie W Hamilton
Mr. Gerald Hammett
Ms. Anne Hammond
Mr. & Mrs. Wilton N.

Hammond
Mr. & Mrs. Clifford L. Hansen
Mr. Frederick Harris
Mr. & Mrs. W. G. Hart
Mr. & Mrs. James F Hayes
Mr. & Mrs. William J. Hayes
Mr. & Mrs. William P Healey
Mrs. Martha Healy
Mr. & Mrs. Michael W. Healv



Mrs. Kay Hearn
Mr. & Mrs. Gail R. Hendricks
Ms. Mary H. Hendry
Mr. & Mrs. Scott Heppel
Mrs. Margaret R. Herman
Mr. & Mrs. John M.

Heyneman
Mr. John Barker Hickox
Mr. & Mrs. Ed Higbie
Mr. Jonel Hill
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph Hill
Mr. & Mrs. Gary Hoar
Mr. Harold R. Holfman
Mr. Virgil L. Holden
Mr. & Mrs. R. E. Holding
Mr. 6. Mrs. Jack K. Holland
Mr. & Mrs. Penn H. Holsapple
Mr. & Mrs. E. P Honnen
Lynn S. Horton M.D.
Mr. Howell Howard III &

Ms. Mary Mendenhall
Mr. Peter C. Howe &

Ms. Elizabeth V. Brown
Mr. Gomer E. Hughes, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. David M.

Hummel, Jr.
Ms. Elizabeth W. Hummel
Mr. & Mrs. Wilson Hurley
Mr. EdwardJ. Husemann
Ms. Jane Iannacone
Inberg-Miller Engineers
The Iron Kettle Yarn

Emporium
Mr. Charles B. Israel
Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth A. Ives, Jr.
Ms. Lorene Jackson
Mr. & Mrs. Roger L. Jacobson
Mr. & Mrs. James F Jennings
Mr. John C. Jex, Jr.
Mr, & Mrs. Edward W.

Johnson
Mr. Scott Johnson
Mr. Stephen T Johnston
Mr. John W Johnstone, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. E. B. Jones
Mr. Robert F. Jones
Mr. & Mrs. Springer Jones
Mr. & Mrs. Charles A.

Juden, Jr.
Mrs. Erma G. Keeley & Mrs.

Lynn A. Mitchell
Mr. Edward J. Keller
Mr. & Mrs. Stewart R. Kester
Mr. Art Kidwell
Mr. Robert H. Kieckheler
Mr. & Mrs. Hugo K. Kilian
Mr. & Mrs. William L. King
Mr. & Mrs. Jerry Kinkade
Ms. Annette S. Kirby
Mr. John Klonizos
Dr. & Mrs. Frank Kopecky
Mr. James Kouf, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Michael LaBazzo
Dr. & Mrs. William G. Laatsch
Mr. Karl Lampe

Mr. Richard Lampert & Mr.

Mark Zaplin
Lane Ranch Company
Mr. & Mrs. Robert E. Lansing
Dr. & Mrs. William A. Larson
Mr. & Mrs. Robert W Lateer
Mr. James R. Lawson
Mr. & Mrs. Harry A. Lehman
Mr. & Mrs. H. A. Linton
Mr. & Mrs. James A. Linton
Mr. & Mrs. William P Long
Mr. John C. Lorini
Mr. & Mrs. J. T. Lovell
Mr. Wilson K. Lythgoe
Mr. Robert MacPherson
Mr. & Mrs. James O. Magee
Mrs. Jean B. Mahoney
Mr. & Mrs. Jim Maitland
Drs. Jack & Sarah Malin
Mr. & Mrs. John A. Manley
Dr. Benjamin T Marchello,

M.D.
Mrs. Mary M. Martin
Mrs. Robert W Martin, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Frederick R. Mayer
Francis McAuliffe
Mr. & Mrs. Michael Mccarty
Mr. & Mrs. Walter McCauley
Ms. Eleanor S. McCollum
Mr. & Mrs. Glyn McCord
Dr. & Mrs. Gregory P. Mccue
Ms. Catherine McDonough &

Dr. Thomas J. Lambert
Mr. & Mrs. Wjlson McElhinny
Tom and Mary McKean
Ms. Erna McNamara
Mr. Greg McPherson
Mr. & Mrs. Charles H. McTier
Mr. David Meadow
Dr. & Ms. Bruce Merchant
Mr. & Mrs. Wayne F.

Messenger
Dr. &, Mrs. Lloyd L. Miller
Mr. Wayne Miller
Mr. Vern Milligan
Mr, Carey Mock
Mr. & Mrs. Lee J. Molesworth
Mr. & Mrs. Edward C.

Montgomery
Mr. Delbert G. Moore
Mr. & Mrs. John B. Mortensen
Mr. & Mrs. C. R. Motis
Mr. & Mrs. Eric S. Muller
Mrs. Carol Murphy
Mr. & Mrs. John A. Murray
Mr. & Mrs. James E. Nelson
Mr. & Mrs. Ken M. Nelson
Ms. Paula M. Nelson &

Mr. Stephen C. Krumpe
Mr. Roland Nickerson
Mr. John T Nickle
Mr. Alex W Nielsen
Mr. James A. Noe
Mr. & Mrs. Werner Noesner
Mrs. Adair M. Nunnally

Mr & Mrs. Jerry W. O'Connell
Mr. & Mrs. Robert H. Oakland
Mrs. Ruth K. Oliver
Mr. & Mrs. Robert D. Olson
Mr David Orser & Ms. Ossie

Abrams
Ms. L. E. Orser
Mr. & Mrs. Michael Overeem
Mr. & Mrs. William J. Owens
Miss Clotilde Oxford &

Mr. Royal Oxford
Mr. William R. Palmer
Mrs. Shannon M. Park

Judge & Mrs. Hunter Patrick
Mr. & Mrs. J. Nichols Patrick
Mr. & Mrs. Harold F Perry
Mr. Robert E. Petersen
Mr. & Mrs. Charles Peterson
Mr. & Mrs. Gene R. Peterson
Mr. & Mrs. John R. Peterson
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas Petrie
Ms. Laura A. Petticord
Dr. & Mrs. Tom Pettinger
Mr. & Mrs. Allan O. Pfnister
Mr. Gerard Pilley
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Pirie
Mr. & Mrs. Patrick G. Pitet
Ms. Lollie B. Plank
Rick and Ann Pole
Mrs. Dorothy M. Price
Mr. Rudy Quillian
Mr. foseph P Qutnlan
James and Barbara Ramsey
Mr. Fred M. Raumer &

Ms. Glenda K.
Winkelmann

Mr. & Mrs. David R. Raynolds
Mr. & Mrs. Bayard D. Rea
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas E.

Reilly, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Peter A. Reimers
Mr. Brad Reynolds &

Ms. Sherry Hostetter
Mr. & Mrs. Blaine Rieke
Mr. & Mrs. Robert N. Roach
Ms. Marion S. Robinson
Mr. & Mrs. Bronson C.

Rumsey
Mr. S. Todd Rush, Jr.
Ms. Nancy Ruskowsky
Mr. J. R. Russell
Mr. & Mrs. Ray W Safford
Mr. & Mrs. Charles L. Salzberg
Mr. & Mrs. D. Paul Sampson
Mr. Craig Sandler
Mr. Reed C. Sandvig
Mr. & Mrs. Anton Scheiber
Mr. Claude Schlesinger
Mr. William Schlichter
Mr. & Mrs. David A.

Schlothauer
Mr. & Mrs. Carl J.

Schmidlapp III
Mr. & Ms. James P Schmitt
Mr. & Ms. Al Schultz

Brig. Gen. & Mrs. Robert R.

Scott
Mr. & Mrs. George J. Sekan
Mr. Edwin B. Sell
Mr. & Mrs. Edward j.

Seymour, Jr.
Mr. Gary Sharp
Mr. & Mrs. John V. Shaw
Mr. & Mrs. Maurice P Shea
Mr. & Mrs. John A. Shelton, Jr.
Mr. Larry Shepard
Mr. & Mrs. V. J. Sheppard
Mr. & Mrs. William N.

Shiebler
Mr. & Mrs. Kendall C. Siggins
Mr. & Mrs. Alan Silverbach
Mr. & Mrs. Gary Sisson
Dr. & Mrs. James T. Smith
Mr. & Mrs. Robert J. Smith
Mrs. Donald Snyder
Mr. & Mrs. Robert L. Snyder
Mr. & Mrs. David Solberg
Mr. & Mrs. James R. Sommers
Mr. Andrew J. Sordoni III
Mr. Ralph Sorensen
Mr. & Mrs. Tony Sorenson
Mr. & Mrs. James K. Speer
Mr. & Mrs. Donald G. Spencer
Ms. Sue Sporer & Mr. Ryan

Torkelson
St. Barbara's Catholic Church
State Farm Agency
Mr. & Mrs. Robert M. Stayner
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph Steinmetz
Mr. & Mrs. Dick Stephenson
Mr. James M. Stevens
Mr. & Mrs. David L. Stewart
Mr & Mrs. F.D. Mike Stone
Mr. Donald A. Stout
Dr. & Mrs. John A. Stroube
Mr. Jim Studer
Mrs. Phillip R. Stull
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas H.

Suitt, Jr.
Dr. & Mrs. Parrick G. Sullivan
Mr & Mrs. Gale Sunderland
Mr. &. Mrs. Alan B. Swenson
Mr. & Mrs. Trace Swisher
Dr. Bernard Swope
Mr. & Mrs. Cuyler M. Taylor
Dr. & Mrs. David Taylor
Dr. Jack Thielen
Mr. Ralph B. Thomas
Mrs. Thyra G. Thomson
Mr. Thomas A. Till
Mr. & Mrs. Stephen M.

Timmer
Mr. & Mrs. Neal E. Tokowitz
Mr. William A. Torrey
Mr. & Mrs. H. Edwin Trusheim
Mr. & Mrs. Tom E. Turner, Jr.
Mr. R. E. Turnquist
Mr. & Mrs. Jerome H. Vallens
Mr. & Mrs. Don Van Ort
Mr. John A. Vann



Mr. Robert Vare
Mr. Robert G. Verbica
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas E. Vinson
Mr. John E. Vollmeq Jr.
Mr. Gene Waddell
Mr. & Mrs. John C. Wade
Ms. Jesslca C Wagner
Mr. Paul Warden
Mr. Craig S. Wardle
Mr. & Mrs. John T Watson
Mr. & Mrs. Harmon H Watt
Mr. & Mrs. David G. Weise
Dr. Barry P Welch M.D.
Mr. Robert W Welsh
Mr. & Mrs. Fred W Wenzel
Dr. & Mrs. Frank D. Werner
West Office Exhibition Design
Mr. & Mrs. George Whitlock
Mr. & Mrs. Steven Whitmore
Mr. Russell Wicks
Mr. Edgar A. Wilcox
Mr. Don Wilkening
Mrs. Juanita Willcutt
Mr Pierre H. Willette
Mr. & Mrs. Eugene F.

Williams, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Robert W.

Williams
Mr. James W. Wilson
Ms. Carole R. Wiltse
Mr. & Mrs. Peter Y Windt
Mr. Bert F. Winston, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Theodore J. Wirth
Mr. & Mrs. James W

Wojtowicz
Mr. & Mrs. Ben G. Wright
Mr. Jesse G. Wright, Jr.
Dr. & Mrs. John l-l Wurzel
Mr. William C. Yarger
Mr. & Mrs. B. E. Yester
Dr. & Mrs. jerry E. Young
Ms. Virginia M. Zinns

ONE OF ONE THOUSAND
SOCIETY

Blue Book Publications, Inc.
Mr & Mrs. Robert E. Allen
Mr. Joseph E. Bernolfo
Mr. & Mrs. Robert D. de

Harde
Mr. & Mrs. Lloyd I. Evans
Mr. W P Hallstein
Mr. & Mrs. Leonard C. Hoeft
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas K.

Hutchinson
Mr. Robert L. Kassab
Mr. L.W Kelly
Dr. Kenneth O. Leonard
Mr. 6. Mrs. George G.

Matthews
Mr. & Mrs. Russell Pierry
Mr. Chuck Riedy
Mr. & Mrs. Clint Smith
Mr. R. L. Wilson

CFM SUSTAINER

John C. Bivona, Jr., M.D.
Mr. Richard D. McDougall
Mr. &. Mrs. Nick A. Misciagna
Mr. William F Mitchell
Mr. & Mrs. Charles G. Walker

CFM SPONSOR

Mr. James S. Albright
Mr. E. J. Bell
Mr. Greg Bernards
Mr. & Mrs. Gerald Bersett
Mr. Bill Birkbeck
Mr. Richard Bronstein
Mr. Leon Budginas
Butterfield & Butterfield
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas K.

Carpenter
Mr. M. A. Carty, Jr.
Mr. Michael Chance
Mr. Bruce L. Cohen
Mr. David F. Condon
Mr. Donald L. Criswell
Mr. Jack W. Deaton
Mr. Wolfgang Dicke
Dixie Gun Works, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas B. Dintrulf
Mr. & Mrs. Donald B. Dobb
Mr Tracy S. Dunn &

Ms. Kristinia R. Dunn
Mr. Jerry Ellenberger
Mr. Martin Errea
Mr. & Mrs. Zennen Ervin
Mr. Michael Escola
Mr. & Mrs. Thomas L. Evans
Mr. Jeff Faintich
Mr. James W Falkowski
Mr. & Mrs. Wallace W

Francis, Jr.
Mr. David French
Mr. & Mrs. William M. Furnish
Mr. & Mrs. Benjamin H.

Gannett
Mr. John Giaconia &

Mr William A. Giaconia
Mr. James D. Gordon
Mr. Thomas P Grainger
Guns Galore
Mr. Tom Hagan
Mr. Ronald Hartman &

Mr. Richard Hartman
Dr. & Mrs. Ladd L.

Heldenbrand
Mr. James R. Heller
Mr. & Mrs. Rick L. Hill
Mr. Denny Hornbeck
Mr. John O. Houchins
Mr. Leonard R. Hug
Mr. Jeffery C. Isble
Dr. Donald Jewell
Mr. Kurt D. Johnsen
Mr. Daniel Katz

Mr. Michael E. Keller
Mr. FrankJ. Kelley IV
Mr. Al Kinman
Mr. Gary L. Larson
Mr. Douglas S. Leigh
Mr. & Mrs. Douglas M. Lesage
Mr. & Mrs. Philip A. Levasser
Mr. Bruce Leven
Little John's Auction Service.

Inc.
Mr. Mitchell L. Luksich
Mr. & Mrs. John Madl
Mr. & Mrs. Greayer Mansfield-

Jones, Jr.
Mr. Gerald W McCormick
Mr. Charles W McDaniel
Mr. Dennis D. Meinert
Mr. Dale Miller
Mr. Terry L Miller
Mr. William Oxley
Mr. David S. Parker
Mr. Walt Pearson
Mr. & Mrs. James C. Perry
Mrs. Grace Picalia
Mr. John Picchietti
Mr. William Caleb Pillsbury, Jr.
Mr. Robin R. Plzak
Mr. George Ranzau
Mr. Gary H. Reynolds
Mr. Malcolm Roberts
Mr Vaughan Ruple
Mr. & Mrs. Nicholas G.

Rutgers, Jr.
Mr. Clifton C. Schafer
Mr. Hans W. Schemke
Mr. Dan Schlegel
Mr. & Mrs. Konrad F.

Schreier, Jr.
Mr. Jack Schubert
Mr. & Mrs. Bill Simpson
Mr. C. w. Slagle
Mr. & Ms. James Stone
Mr. William E. Surette
Mr. George E. Thompson
Mr. Duane Torgeson
Mr. & Mrs. Tim Trabon
Mr. & Mrs. Glen G. Urquhart
Mr. David W. Vaughan
Mr. Frederick Wallace
Mr. Steve Walters
Mr. George T Warman, Jr.
Mr. Brad Watkins
Mr. David Weddle
Mr. Franklin A. West
Mr. Doug Wight
Mr. John L. Wilkinson
Mr. Steve Willadsen
Mr. & Mrs. J D. Winzenried
Mr. Stephen Wright

CFM FRIEND

Mr. & Mrs. Ralph J. Aab
Mr. Brian G. Abel

Mr. John W Adair
Mr. Tom Adams
Mr. James M. Alexander
Mr. Melvin R. Allen
Mr. & Mrs. Robert W. Allen
Mr. & Mrs. Terry Allen
Mr. David Alley
Altermann & Morris Galleries
Mr. John E. Ambach
Amoskeag Auction Co., Inc.
Mr. Art Andersen
Mr. Lee Andersen
Mr. B. E. Anderson
Mr. Robert Anderson
Mr. Roger D. Anderson, Jr.
Mr. David Angelucci
Mr. Stan Angle
Mr. Rick Anwyl
Mr. James O. Aplan &

Ms. Peg A. Kaubisch
Mr. John M. Appleton
Mr. Norman Armentrout
Mr. Scott Armstrong
Mr. Richard Arrowood
Mr. & Mrs. Philip J. Asborno
Dr. & Mrs. Gerry Asher
Mr. Scotr Ashley
Mr. James Autry
Dr. Edward Aven
Mr. Rick M. Bachman &

Mr. Gradie Kerr
Mr. Philip Bailey
Mr. & Mrs. Chris Baker
Dr. M. C. Baker
Mr. Harvey Knox Baldwin
Mr. George D. Ballard
Mr. Merton J. Bangerter
Mr. Geoffrey Barber
Mr. Lloyd Barden
Barnes Guns. Inc.
Mr. Steve Barnett
Mr. Larry Barrett
Dr. .James Barta
Mr. Roberr W Banlett. Jr.
Mr. Steven Bartow
Mr. George Bassett
Mr. Don Baushman
Mr. Larry D Beall
Mr. Larry Beam
Mr. Franklin D. Beasley
Mr. & Mrs. F J. Beckman
Mr. & Mrs. Felix A. Bedlan
Mr. & Mrs. Ronald L. Bell
Mr. Paul Z. Bennett
Mr. Raymond B. Bentley
Mr. Steve Berg
Mr. & Mrs. Steven D. Berman
Mr. Vernon J. Berning
Mr. & Mrs. David P Bichrest
Big Sky Rifle Ranch
Mr. John Blackburn
Mr. Walter Blair
Mr. & Mrs. Dave Blake
Mr. Joe Blakeley
Mr. Vern Blanton



Mr. Mark Blote
Mr. Stephen Bly
Mr. T G. Bodell
Mr. Doug Boldman
Mr. Robert S. Bolinger
Mr. Sal Boncross
Mr. Max Bosworth
Mr. James Bowen
Mr. & Mrs. David Bowling, Sr

Mr. L. L. Bowman
Mr. William Bowser
Mr. Francis W. Boyle
Mr. O. Kyle Bradley
Mr. Leo H. Bradshaw Jr.

Mr. & Mrs. Edward A.
Brandhorst

Mr. Ray Brazille
Mr. & Mrs. Michael L.

Brinkmann
Mr. Dean Brock
Mr. Mitch Brock
Mr. & Mrs. Dennis C. Brooks
Mr. Lynn A. Brooks
Mr. H. W Brown
Mr Marshall Buck
Mr. Albert D. Buckingham
Mr. Terrill E. Buffum
Mr. Hans P Bulgheroni
Mr. Bill Burnaugh
Mr. Tom Burness
Mr. Neil S. Burnham
Mr. Gale T Burr
Mr. Gerald W. Bursi
Mr. RobertJ. Burton
Mr. David Bushing
Mr. Richard D. Buswell
Mr. Matthew I Buzzell, lr.
Mr. Vern G. Byers
Mr. Forest Cague
Mr. & Mrs. Michael .J. Cairns
Mr. & Mrs. Clifford Caldwell
Mr. Keith W. Campbell
Mr. & Mrs. Robert A.

Campbell
Mr. Vincent Caponi
Mr. & Mrs. Richard C. Capps
Mr. Larry W. Carpenter
Mr. Robert K. Carr
Mr. Michael Carrick
Mr. James C. Carruthers
Mr. John Cassou
Mr. Andy Cauble
Mr. Herschel Chadick
Mr. Randall B. Challin
Mr. Michael Cherok
Mr. Kevin P Cherry
Dr. Lance Christensen
Mr. Thomas Clapper
Mr. Heath W Clark
Mr. Michael P Clark
Mr. Peyron C. Clark. Jr. &

Mr. Vince McMahon
Mr. Thomas L. Clark
Mrs. Linda A. Clarke
Classic Munitions Co., Inc.

Mr. Ed Claypool
Mr. Elden Clemens
Mr. Donald E. Coate
Mr. Darrell Cobbs
Mr. Leigh M. Coffin
Mr. William A. Colbeck
Mr. Ken Cole
Collectable Arms

International, Inc.
Mr. Michael H. Collins
Mr. Robert J. Connolly
Mr. Larry Conti
Mr. & Mrs. Clayton E. Coopel
Mr. & Mrs. Orvel Cooper
Mr. Russell M. Coover
Mr. Wayne J. Corcoran
Mr. Boyd B. Corliss, Jr.
Mr. Alvin H. Cornell
Mr. Beryl Coulson
Cowboy Musuem
Mr. & Mrs. Richard R. Cower
Mr. Liscom Cox
Mr. John F Craig
Mr. & Mrs. Pete Crance
Mr. Frank Crawlord
Mr. William J. Creamer
Mr. Richard Crosier
Mr. & Mrs. Brent Cummings
Mr. James J. Curlovic
Mr. &. Mrs. Edwin Curtis
Mr. Dave Daiss
Mr. Don Daughenbaugh
Mr. Gregory Davis
Mr. & Mrs. James S. Davis
Mr. Russell Day
Mr. & Mrs. Stephen E. Day
Mr. Gregory DeGenaro
Mr. Christian DeGuigne IV
Mr. Donald T Deininger
Mr. Michele Deluca
Mr. David L. DeLullo, Jr.
Mr. Don DeMatteis &

Mr. Charles S. Hackett
Mr. Tom Dent

J. C. Devine, Inc.
Mr. Glen Dickerson
Mr. Les Dillman
Mr. Jake D. DiMicheli
Mr. Rick Doden
Mr. B. Patrick Doordan
Mr Charlie Dorman
Mr. Frank Dorman
Mr. Steve Dowdy
Mr. Randolph S. Dozier
Mr. D. M. Dreher
Mr. Lynn E. Dreyfus
Mr. James T Drummond
Mr. Winfred L. Dudley
Mr. Doug Duever
Mr. Ray Duff
Mr. GeorgeJ. Duffy
Mr. Gary R. Dunn
Mr. Ron Dunnells
Dr. Russell R. Dutcher &

Dr. Linda Dutcher

Mr Walter C. Earl
Mr. Charles L. Echnoz
Mr. Bill Eckman
Mr. Paul Edgar
Mr. & Mrs. John Edmondson
Eller's Hunting Post
Mr. & Mrs. Walter C. Emery
Mr. Thomas J. English
Mr. Cliff Ericksen
Mr. & Mrs. Peter E. Erickson
Mr. Norbert Ertel
Mr. Olin C. Ervine
Mr. Raymond Esola
Mr. Bryce Evans
Mr. Leigh D. Evans
Mr. Steven L. Evans
Mr. & Mrs. William L. Evans
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Everhart
Mr. Douglas Faery
Mr. Jack Farley
Mr. Peter Farris
Mr. Gary Featherston
Mr. Kent Ferguson
Mr. & Mrs. Paul Ferrara
Mr. FrankJ. Finch, Jr.
Mr. Andy Fink
Mc Kevin Fitzgibbon
Mr. & Mrs. David G. Flurkey
Mr. & Mrs. Jerry L. Founrain
Mr. John E. Fox
Mr. Terry Frederick
Mr. Richard Freer
Mr. Mort Friedman
Mr. & Mrs. Paul L Friedrich
Mr. Ken Fry
Mr. John A. Fucci
Mr. Teco Fuchs
Mr. Mark Fuhrman
Mr. Rod Fuller
Mr. & Mrs. James H.

Fuquay, Jr.
Mr. Frank C. Gaetje
Mr. Alan Gaines
Mr. Antony Galazan
Mr. Michael Gallenberg
Mr. Roger Gantnier
Mr. Gregory Garlick
Mr. John Garvin
Mr. Alex Gaspelum
Mr. George R. Gassman
Mr. Stan Gates
Mr. Nicholas J. Geibel
Mr. Roger Gervais
Mr. Humbert Ghirlanda
Mr. Max Gibson
Gibson'Thomas Englneering

Co., Inc.
Mr. David O. Gilberg
Mr. Michael L. Ginn
Mr. John Girard
Mr. & Mrs. David Glamann
Mr. & Mrs. Herb Glass
Mr. Joe Glasscock
Mr. Robert M. Godbout
Mr. & Mrs. James P Goergen

Dr. James M. Goforth
Mr. Arthur J. Gogan
Mr. William T Goodman
Mr. PE. Goodwin
Mr. Herbert Gopstein
Mr. Tulane Gordon III
Mr. James B. Gossett
Mr. Randy Gott
Mr. Floyd D. Gottwald, Jr.
Mr. Jerry Gragnani
Mr. John Grant
Mr. Richard Gratiot
Mr. David Graves
Mr. Andy Gray
Mr. Morton E. Gray
Mr. William C. Gray
Mr. Arthur F Green
Mr. William Greiner
Mr. Tim Grode
Mr. Anson Grosvenor
Mr. Frederick Grote
Mr. & Mrs. Don Grove
Mr. George J Groveq Jr.
Mr. Perry Gruhlkey
Mr. & Mrs. James G. Guindon
Gun Sport, Ltd.
Mr. Todd Gurganus
Mr. Tom Haas, Sr.

Mr. & Mrs. Tommy B. Haas
Mr. Danrel F Habersaat
Mr. Gary W Haile
Mr. Mark Halcon
Mr. & Mrs. Hal Hamilton
Mr. Steve W. Hamilton
Mr. & Mrs. Richard Hammer
Mr. C.L. Hancock
Mr. Denny Hanel
Mr. & Mrs. Gordon L. Hansen
Mr. |ohn R. Hansen, Jr.
Mr. Ted Hansen
Mr. Henry E. Harker, Jr.
Mr. Robert Harlock
Mr. &John W Harm
Mr. Dan Harrier
Mrs. Fredric A. Harris
Mr. James Harris
Mr. John L. Harris
Mr. Michael Hart
Mr. Mike Harvey
Mr. William L. Harvey
Mr. Elbert E. Hash
Mr. Tom A. Hauptmann
Mr. David Haviar
Mr. & Mrs. John Hawk
Mr. Kim Hayes
Mr. David Healy
Mr. Carl Heinrich
Dr. Bruce Heischober
Mr. Doug Heiser
Mr. & Mrs. Michael R. Helton
Mr. A. G. Herman ill
Mr. John Herman
Mr. William V. Hice
Mr. Ken Hills
Mr. Alan B. Hindmarch



Mr. Duke Hingley
Mr. Charles E. Hinton
Mr. & Mrs. Glenn J Hockett
Mr. & Mrs. Robert E Hodgdon
Mr. James Hodges
Mr. Walter O. Holfman
Mr. 6. Mrs. Monte Hofstrand

Mr. FrankJ. Kovar
Mr. Ryan Kowalski
Mr. William F. Krause
Mr. Keith Kristjanson
Mr. & Mrs. Edward D.

Kukowski
Mr. Roger Kurtz
Mr. Eugene Kuta
Mr. Compron LaBauve. Jr.
Mr. Bill Lackey
Mr. Gregory A. Lampe
Mr. & Mrs. John R. Lampe
Mr. Eddie Land
Mr. & Mrs. John M. Lang
Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth A. Lange
Mc Robert Lanthier
Mr. & Mrs. J R. LaRue
Mr. Brant M. Laue
Mr. Jim Ledbetter
Mr. & Mrs. Jerry Lee
Mr. Jerry D. Lee
Mr. & Ms. Jerry Leeth
Legendary Guns ol the West
Mr. Bob Lenius
Mr. & Mrs. Berton Leon
Mr. Edmund Lewis
Mr. Gordon Liddicoat
Mr. Larry Lile
Mr. Brett Limotta
Mr. Carl Lind
Mr. Roger Lindstrom
Mr. Richard H. Lions
Mr. Sergay Liston
Mr. & Mrs. Donald H. Littman
Mr. Jell Loflin
Mr. Cliff Logan
Mr. Lyle C. Logan
Mr. John W Loomer
Mr. Dick Loper
Mr. Joseph Lorsung
Mr. Roderick Love
Mr. James D. Lowery
Mr Eddie W Luke
Lunenschloss Marine &

Sporting Goods
Mr. Austin J. Lyles
Mr. G. R. Lyles, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. John N. Maddux
Mr. George Madis
Mr. Joel Maertens
Mr. Ben Mahrle
Mr. A. G. Malinconico
Mr. John J Malloy
Mr. Jim Malone
Mr. Monte Mandarino
Mr. James Mangan
Mr. John Manganiello
Mr. & Mrs. Robert A.

Manganiello
Mr. Jacques Mann
Mr. Chris M. Marino &

Mr. Gary Marino
Mr. Tony Marsh
Mr. & Mrs. Greg Martin
Dr. Kenneth Martin

Mr. Stephen Martin
Mr. Greg Marx
Mr. Edward M. Masad
Mr. Rudy Massenzi
Mr. Vaughn Masthoff
Mr. Edward T Masuda
Mr. Richard Mataisz
Mr. John Matthews
Mr. Glen E. Mattox
Mr. Gerald R. Mayberry
Mr. W H. McCalla
Mr. Frank McCoy
Mr. Arlin McCroskie
Mr. David F. McCubbin
Mr. Lyle McDermott
Mr. Chris McGary
Mr. Hugh S. Mclean
Mr. Paige McNeill
Mr. William McPoyle
Mr. Mike Medwid &

Mr. William Medwid
Mr. George Meese
Mr. Joe Melanson
Dr. Daniel H. Menser
Mr. Jack Mercer
Mr. Tim Mercer
Mr. David Merritt
Mr. Le Roy Merz
Mr. Mike Methe
Mr. Ron Michaud
Mid West Gun Exchange
Mr. Garry Miller
Mr. L. D. Miller III &

Mr. Jay Miller
Mr. Marshall Miller
Mr. William J. Miller
Mr. Melvin E. Mills, Jr.
Mr. James C. Mitchell
Mr. & Mrs. Robert H. Mitchell
Mr. David Monie
Montana Outfitters
Mr. Evy M. Morgan
Mr. Gordon Morgan
Mr. Ronald E. Morse &

Mr. C. Scott Morse
Mr. David Muir
Mr. David H. Muller
Mr. Richard S. Mullins
Mr. Philip Murphy
Mr. David W. Myers
Nagel Gun Shop
Mr. Jim Nauwens
Mr. David A. Nelson
Mr. Jeff Nelson
Mr. Steve Neustrom
Mr. Richard Newberry
Mr. Irvin D. Nicholas, Jr.
Mr. Robert D. Nichols
Mr Chris E. Nikolaisen
Mr. John H. Noble
Mr. Ken Noble
Mr. & Mrs. Ray O. Norberg
Mr. James R. Nossett &

Mr. Richard Sanford
Mr. Ronald H. Nyman

Mr. & Mrs. Michael P O'Berry
Mr. & Mrs. Richard O'Connor
Mr. Bert O'Neill, Jr.
Mr. James I. O'Shea
Mr. & Mrs. Robert W Obreiter
Mr. Don Ocumpaugh
Mr. & Mrs. Milt Ocumpaugh
Mr. Lynn Odean
Mr. Tom Odom
Olathe Trading Post
Old Fontenelle Gun Shop
Mr. Herr Oliver
Mr. Steve Ongie
Mr. Larry Orr
Mr. Bill M. Owens
Mr. Eldon J. Owens
Mr. & Mrs. David Packard
Mr. Thurman Padgett
Mr. Andy Palmer
Mr. David J. Palmiter
Mr. James Parker
Dr. H. Lynn Parsons M.D.
Mr. Dan Partin
Mr. Calvin Patrick, Sr.

Mr. David Patton
Mr. James W. Paul
Mr. & Mrs. Daniel Pauly
Mr. & Mrs. Garald Paxton
Mr. Len Pearson
Mr. Dennis M. Pederson &

Ms. Karen Armstrong
Mr. & Mrs. Al Perry
Mr. Bill Perry
Mr. Chris Pervere
Mr. & Mrs. R. E. Peschke
Mr. Carl T Petersen
Mr. Daniel Petersen
Mr. Ronald C. Petersen
Mr. & Ms. J. C. Peterson
Mr. Robert H. Petrarca
Mr. William Q Pirie
Mr. Timothy W. Plecher
Mr. Kermir R. Plough
Mr. David T. Plummer
Pony Express Sport Shop,

Inc. Assn.
Mr. Wayne Poole
Mr. Thomas A. Porter
Mr. Allen Postel
Mr. Tim Powell
Mr Joe Prather
Mr. & Mrs. Gary Presson
Mr. Walter Prince
Mr. David M. Proctor, Jr.
Mr.&Mrs.J D Proops
Mr. Hal Prucha
Mr. Jack A. Puglisi
Mr. Sergio Pustogorodsky
Mr. Eric P Putnam
Mr. & Mrs. Raymond L. Pylant
Les and Jan Quick
Mr. Gary W. Quinlan & Mr.

Dale Troutman
Mr. Joseph T Quinn
Mr. David Quist, Sr.

Mr. Charles K. Hoins
Mr. Richard Hokin
Mr. & Mrs. Richard L. Hollow
Mr. & Mrs. Reginald R.

Holloway
Mr. Ray Holt
Mr. William Honegger
Mr. John S. Honeycutt
Mr. Charles Hoopaugh
Mr. Finley Hootsell
Mr. William Horbal
Dr. Ray E. House &

Dr. Linda L. House
Mr. Justin Hovis
Mr. Virgil Howard
Mr. Arlen G. Howle, Jr.
Mr. Gary W Hubbs
Mr. Christian Humbert
Mr. Peter Ide
Mr. Richard Ingle
Mr. Dan Janssen
Mr. & Mrs. Philip Jennison
Mr. Gary Jensen
Mr. James E. Johnson
Mr. James R. Johnson
Mr. Kurt R. Johnson
Mr. Paul Tohnson
Mr. Robert D. .Johnson
Mr. Walter W Johnson
Johnsrud Enterprises. Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Larry W. Jones
Mr. Mike.Jones, Sr.

Mr. Ron Jones
Mr. Dennis Juelson
Mr. Haig Kachian
Dr. James W. Kahre
Mr. Jerry Kaiser
Mr. Mike Kammerer
Mr. Braden B. Kane
Mr. Robert Keefer
Mr. John W. Keene
Mr. G. B. Kenny
Mr. Brian Kent
M. &. Mrs. Ernest Kesely
Mr. Kenton Kidd
Mr. Edward W Killam
Mr. & Mrs. James D. King
Mr. Joseph H. Kiser
Dr. Gerald Klaz
Mr. Dennis Klimaszewski
Mr. Keith T Kmetz
Mr. Lee R. Knauss
Mr. Thomas S. Knight III
Mr. Kenneth L Knighten
Mr. J. W Koch
Mr. Bill V. Kopfman
Mr. James R. Korbelik
Mr. Donald M. Koval



Mr. Doug Rainbow
Mr. Jim Ram
Mr. Thomas H. Ramey
Mr. Robert Rayzak
Mr. Robert E. Reabe
Mr. Larry Ready
Mr. Les Reitan
Mr. Robert C. Renneberg
Mr. Willliam H. Reynolds
Mr. & Mrs. Tommy L. Rholes
Mr. Robert Ricalton
Dr Michael J. Ricci
Mr. David E. Riffle
Mr. James G. Righeimer
Riley's Sport Shop lnc.
Mr. Ray Rink
Mrs. Mary Ann Riordan
Mr. Frank Roberts
Mr. Ross Roberts
Mr. Clarence Robertson
Mr. Gary L. Robertson
Mr. Bruce Robinson
Mr. Thomas H. Robinson
Mr. Bruce Rogers
Mr. Geoffrey Rogers
Mr. Russell Rogerson
Mr. Robert W. Rohrig
Ron's Guns, Inc.
Mr. Lawrence E. Root
Mr. John Royer
Mr. & Mrs. Leon Royer
Mr. Robert G. Ruben
Mr. Ronald Rumfield
Mr. Dave Rupert
Mr. Harold D. Russell
Mr. Dan E. Ryan
Mr. Randall Saba
Mr. Ron Sahnow
Mr. & Mrs. Ray Saign
Mr. Mike Salisbury
Mr. Joseph L. Salter
Mr. Vic Samilenko
Mr. Larry Sanders
Mr. Robert M. Sandfort
Mr. Herbert B. Sandlin
Dr. Anthony S. Sapienza
Mr Bill Sargent
Mr. Charles D. Savaia
Mr. Kurt H. Saxon
Mr. Joseph Scarpa
Mr. MarkJ. Schafer
Mr. & Mrs. Roy L. Scharer
Mr. Richard Schenk
Mr. Walter E. Schiessl
Mr. Scott Schladoer
Mr. Ernest A. Schmidt
Mr. Charles Schneible
Mr. Donald C. Schofield
Mr. John Schuhmacher, Jr.
Schultheis Sporting Goods, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Bob G. Schulz
Mr. Paul H. Schumacher
Mr. & Mrs. Rodney E. Schwartz
Mr. Dick Schwartzer
Mr. Robert Schwing

Mr. Thad Scott
Mr. Loren Scovel
Mr. & Mrs. Pete Scripps
Mr. Edward D. Scruggs, Jr.
Mr. Robert S. Searle
Mr. Tom Selleck
Mr. Richard Sellers
Mr. John W Sevey
Mr. William F. Sevier
Mr. & Mrs. Jack D. Shanstrom
Mr. Steven Sharps
Mr. Randy Shaw
Mr. Bruce Shelley
Mr. C. D. Shelton
Dr. Larry Shelton
Mr. Peter Sherayko
Mr. Roy Shetka
Mr. Clark Shields
Mr. Steven Shipps
Mr. David G. Shirley
Mr. Jeffery C. Shivers
Shooters Den
Mr. & Mrs. Jeff Shrum
Mr. & Mrs. Randy S. Shuman
Mr. Louis Sicola
Mr. & Mrs. James W Sigmon
Silver Dollar Gun & Pawn
Mr. WV. Sisney
Mr. Robert Siuda
Mr. Charles R. Skillington
Mr. A.G. Smith
Mr. Courtney C. Smith
Mr. David W. Smith
Mr. Gary Smith
Mr. Leon Smith
Mr. Mike Smith
Mr. Ron Smith
Mr. & Mrs. Malcolm R.

Sneddon
Mr. Sheldon Snyder
Mr. Paul Sorrell
Mr. John Spangler
Mr. Bruce W. Spaulding
Mr. Bill Spicer
Mr. & Mrs. Edward B. Stabler
Mr. joe Stairrett
Mr. Ron Stanford
Mr. & Mrs. Edward E. Stapleton
Mr. Larry Stauch
Mr. & Mrs. Lewis T Steadman
Mr. Charles Stearns
Mr. Bill Stewart
Mr. Clyde Stewart, Jr.
Mr. Dennis Stima
Mr. Robert G. Sturges
Mr. John Supanich
Mr. Jim Supica
Mr. Robert O. Swearingen
Mr. Linden G. Swedeen
Lt. Col. Robert T Sweeney
Mr. Jeff Switzer
Mr. Ed Szafranski
Mr. John Tarleton
Mr. Bill Taylor
Mr. Dick Taylor

Mr. James B. Taylor
Mr. Jon Taylor
Mr. Richard S. Taylor
Mr. Shawn Taylor
Mr. Steve Taylor
Mr. Thomas Tehee
Mr William B. Telford &

Ms. Elizabeth L. Murray
Mr. Jim Terrell
Mr. Wade Thoman
Mr. John Thomas
David and Carol Thorn
Mr. English Thornwell
Mr. Rick Thrasher
Mr. Bill Tibert
Mr. Billy Tinney
Mr. Bill Toelke
Mr. Al Train
Mr. Ernest C.Trefz
J. D. Trimpa Farms, LLC

Mr. Howard Tuck
Mr. Jerry E. Tucker
Mr. Doug Turnbull
Mr. Edward E. Ulrich
Mr. William Van Horn
Mr. David Van Wart
Mr. David Vander Werff
Mr. Lewis Vandeventer
Mr. & Mrs. Thurston VanHorn
Mr. & Mrs. Norman A. Vegely
Mr. Michael L. Venturino
Mr. Wally Vernon
Mr. & Mrs. Charles G. Veselsky
Mr. & Mrs. Harry L. Viezens
Mr. Mike Vlahakis
Mr. Jim Volante
Mr. & Mrs. Vern Vossler
Mr. Jim Voulgaris
Mr. Chuck Wachter
Mr. Ted Wahl
Mr. & Mrs. Peter Wainwright
Mr. Tom Wait
Dr. & Mrs. Lawrence Wales
Mr. Allan Walker
Mr. Dan L. Walker & Mr. Jeff

Lamotte
Mr. Mike Walker
Mr. |ohn C. Wallace
Mrs. Patsy J. Wallace
Mr. Bill H. Waller
Mr. & Mrs. Leon E. Wandler
Mr. William A. Ward
Warner's Gun Shop
Mr. & Mrs. Roy D. Warren
Mr. Peter H. watson
Mr. & Ms. V. M. Watt, Jr.
Mr. & Mrs. Walter J. Webb
Mr. John E Welch
Mr. James Wester
Mr. Jim Wetzel
Mr. Mike Weygandt
Mr. Bradley Whitnah
Mr. Nicholas I. Wienold
Mr. Harold Wieser, Jr.
Mr. Tony Wilcox

Mr. Ed Williams
Mr. Jimmy Williams
Mr. William J. Willis
Mr. Alec Wilson
Mr. Allen Wilson
Dr. & Mrs. Richard A. Wilson
Mr. Tom Wilson
Mr. Velton Wilson
Mr. Dean Wimmergren
Winchester Arms Collectors
Mr. Richard Wingle
Mr. Scott Winnop
Mr. Blake Withrow
Mr. Ronald D. Witt
Mr. Andy Wojtowycz
Wolle Publishing
Mr. Franklin M. Wolosek
Mr. Bobby Wood
Mr. Doyle Wood & Mr, Ron

White
Mr. Eric B. Wright
Mr. Tim Wyland
Mr. Ron Yacketta
Mr. TerryJ. Yarema
Mr. Dean E. Yearout, Sr.

Mr. Mark Yecha
Mr. J. A. Yelavich
Mr. Carl Young
Mc Bill Yrulegui
Dr. & Mrs. RobertJ. Zakoff
Mr. Jim Zambito
Mr. & Mrs. Gregory Zeccardi
Mr. & Mrs. Dave Zerbe
Mr. Robert Zimermann
Mr. Richard G. Zogby
Mr. Michael Zomber

CORPORATE FOUNDER

Sierra Trading Post

CORPORATE CONTRIBUTOR

Allen & Company Incorporated
Olin Corporation Charitable

Trust
Shoshone F'irst Bank
Smith's Food & Drug Stores
Two Dot Ranch, Inc.

CORPORME ASSOCIATE
Arrcrafr Printers of Billings, Inc
Best western Sunset Motor Inn
Chevron USA Production

Company
First National Bank & Trust
Mr. & Mrs. David Flitner
Y-Tex Corporation

CORPORATE BENEFACTOR

Basin Mechanical
Energy West
First State Bank of Newcastle
Gail Construction Co.



RZMQ - AM/FM
Mr. & Mrs. Jeffrey P Kruger
Mr. & Mrs. Creed Law
Northwest College
Pahaska Tepee
Shoshone Distributing Co., Inc.
Webster Chevrolet-Buick. Inc.

CORPORME SUSTAINER

Big Horn Basin Orthopaedic
Clinic. PC

Big Horn Decorating, Inc.
Big Horn Galleries
Mr, Matthew Bishop
Blair Hotels
Cabela's Inc. Retail Division
Cellular One
Community First Bank
Double Diamond X Ranch
Engineering Associates
EPS Specialties Ltd., Inc.
Foundation for Nonh American

Wild Sheep
Fremont Motor Company
Graham Motor Company -

Cody
H.S. Trask & Co.

Ivory Rodeo Company
Marathon Oil Company
Mooncrest Ranch
Mountain west, Inc.
Mr. & Mrs. Roger H. Murray
New West Furniture
Pacificorp
Rocky Mountain Sports
Simpson, Kepler & Edwards,

Arrys Ar Law
Sotheby's
Tanager Beverages
The Adventure TV Network
United Building Center
White Communications
Yellowstone Newspapers
Yellowstone Regional Airport

CORPORATE SPONSOR

7D Ranch
Albertson's, Inc.
American Capital Access
AT&T Cable Services
Basin Vision Center, PC

BC's

Big Horn Energy
Big Horn Glass
Big Horn Travel
Bill Cody Ranch
Ryan Christie, DDS, PC

Cody Family Practice
Cody Stampede Board
Cody KOA Kampground
Color World Printers
Communi Graphics, Inc.
Cook Moving &. Storage

Cowan Consruction. Inc.
Crum Elecffic Supply Company
Elsom & Elsom. Lawyers
Graham, Dietz & Associates
High Noon Western

Collectibles
Hirschl and Adler Galleries, Inc.
Irma Hotel
.J Bar 9 Ranch

J. N. Bartfield Art Galleries
Kennecott Energy Company
Kid-U-Not
King Museum
KODI Radio
Lees Carpets
Main Street Mercantile / Xerox

Sales
Marlin Firearms Company
Maxwell's
Medical Indemnity Group
Meeker Insurance Agency
Northern Gardens Greenhouse

and Nursery
Old West Antiques
Olive Glenn Golf & Country

Club
Pinnacle Bank
Plush Pony
Prudential Brokerage West, Inc.
Rick Zajdel Catering Inc.
Schrader Metal & Design
Sheridan Capital LLC

Simonton and Simonton
Spirit Mountain Aviation
Sunlight Federal Credit Union
Sunlight Sports
The Pollard Hotel
The Proud Cut Saloon
The Trophy Connection, Inc. &

Yellowstone Travel
The Building Center - Cody
Thomas Minckler Gallery
Timber Creek Interlors

Furniture &. Design
U.S. Bank
UXU Ranch
Wayne's Boot Shop
Western Real Estate
Wilder Enterprises
Words Worth
Yellowstone Printing

BUSINESS FRIEND

Abbey Carpet
Ace Hardware
Advanced Heating
Asphalr Reiinishing Services,

Inc.
B-Dazzled
Mr. & Mrs. Gary Bailey
Ballard Funeral Home
Ballard Painting
Beartooth Floral
Big Horn Horriculrural Service

Big Horn Paint
Big Horn Wholesale. Inc.
Blake's Portrait Studio
Buffalo Bill Stations Inc.
Carpet Hut
Cassie's Spirits, Inc.
Cedar Ridge Realty
Coca Cola West
Cody Country Chamber of

Commerce
Cody Enterprise
Cody Jewelers
Cody Newsstand
Cody Overhead Door
Cody Screen Printers &

Embroidery
Cody Veterinary Hospital
Coldwell Banker - Antlers

Realty
Computers, Printers & You
Copeland Appliance and

Service
Country Flowers and Gifts
Mrs. Marian L. Davis
Downtowner Liquors
Mr. & Mrs. Ron Dube
Eagle ol Cody Printing
Eastgate Liquors
Express Pipeline Partnership
Farm Bureau Insurance (Cody)

Fentress Bradburn Architects,
Lrd.

Dr. & Mrs. Selvoy M. Fillerup
Food Basket, Inc.
Franca's Italian Dining
Gene Webster Insurance
GP Enterprises, Inc.
Graham Motor Company of

Powell
Grub Steak Expeditions
H.W Stewart, Inc.
Hall & Hall, Inc.
Haskell Furniture Company
Hilary A. Heminway lnreriors
Hinze, Inc.
Historic Wyo. Territory &

Tecumseh's Fronrier
Trading Post

Holm, Blough & Company
Homestead Realty, L C
Hong Kong Chinese Restaurant

James Reilly & Company, PC.

JR's Fashions For Men
K Mart
Kelly Inn
Kodner-Gallery of the Masters
Lamplighter Inn
Dr. James W. Landers, DDS
Linton's Big R
Mail Boxes, Etc.
Martin-Harris Gallery
Mr. Jon Maynell
McDonald's of Cody and

Powell
Medical Center Pharmacy

Midwest Fence Company
Leonard Moore, DDS, PC

Mountain Valley Engine Service
National Museum of Wildlife

Art
Nelson Insurance
Our Place
Park County Title
Pawnee Irrigarion Supply
Phillips and Company
Pioneer Water Systems
Powell Tribune
Q M Appraisal
Mr. & Mrs. Paul Rankin
Rimrock Dude Ranch
Rimrock Tire lnc.
Robirds & Wheeler LC

Rock Creek Resort
Rocky Mountain Hillcrest

Spring Water
Rogers Marvel Architects
Ron's Exxon
S&SAudio-Video
Sage Realry
Mr. & Mrs. Ike Sankey
Scheels A11 Sports
Sears
Seidel's Saddlery
Shoshone Canyon Tire Co.

Shoshone Office Supply
Shoshone Title
Simpson Gallagher Gallery
Sommers & Voerding Real

Estate
Stroupe Pest Control
TL. Quick Construction
Taggart Company
Tegeler and Associates, Inc.
The Greenwich Workshop, Inc.
Tom's Gun Shop
Traditions West, Inc.
US Farm & Ranch Supply Co.,

Inc.
Vannoy Law Oflice
Dr. Debra G. Weinberger
Ms. Barbara J Wilkerson
Worland Cleaners
Wyoming Sprinkler &

Landscaping
Zapata's



John Mix Stanley (1814-1872).

C.asa Grande Ruln. I 846. Oil on

baafi, 9 718 x 1 2 7/8 in. Gilt oF

George M. Stanley (grandson of
the artiso and Family.

WHITNEY GALLERY OF
WESTERN ART

William Achelf (b. 1947)
Sacred Smoke, 1984.
Oil on canvas. 40 x 22 in.
Gilt of Alan and Cindy Horn.

Clyde Aspevig (b. 1951)
Tumbleweeds, 1999.
Oil on canvas. 40 x 60 114 in.
Gift ol the Mary A.H. Rumsey
Foundation.

John James Audubon (1 785-
1851), artist
J.T Bowen,
lithographer
Baird s Bunring. 6 7ll6 x
10 3/B in.
Bell's Vireo, 9 x 6 7 18 in.
Brewers Blachbird. 10 3/B x
6 112 in.
Harris' Finch, 10 7116 x
6 112 in.
Le Conte's Sharp-tailed
Bunting, 10 114 x 6 314 in.
Least Flycatcher, 10 112 x
6 112 in.
Nuttall's Whip-poor-will,
6 11 116 x 10 3116 in.
Smith's La"rk Buntinq. 6 314 x
1O 114 in.
Western Shore Lark. 6 112 x 10
112 in.
After 1 843, hand-colored
lithographs.

Gifts ol Dean W. and Mary M.
Swilt and Mary Williams
Fine Arts of Boulder,
Colorado.

Gerald Balciar (b. 1942)
Beaver Pond. 1998.
Bronze. l7 x 1B x91l2in.
William E. Weiss Purchase
Award - 1999 Buffalo Bill Art
Show.

James Bama (b.1926)
Study oJ Young Indian, 1977.
Pencil on ransparent paper,
11 x 10 1/2 in.
Gift of Herben G. Houze.

Susan Barnes (late 2Oth
century)
Horse Multiple IV, 1998.
Oil on silver gelatin print, 2B
x 33 in.
Gift of Miriam and Joe
Sample.

John E Buck (b. 1 946)
The Great Divide: American
Eagle,1993.
Woodcut on paper, 60 112 x
36 314 rn.
Gilt of Miriam and Joe
Sample.

Olive Fell (1902'1980)
Me and Old Fatth"ful, ca. 1950.
Lirhograph, 9 1 12 x 7 114 rn.

Tieefor Two, ca. 1950.
Lirhograph. r0 x 7 5/B in
Untitled (bear), n.d.
Print.5x5in.
Untitled, Indian baby, ca. 1970.
Mixed media on board, 6 x
4 5lB in.
Untitled, Indian child. ca.
1970.
Mixed media on board, 6 x
4 112 tn.
Gifts of Hank and Florence
Dais.

Richard V. Greeves (b 1935)
In the Land of the Water
People,1977-1980.
Bronze, 62 in. high
Gilt from Collection olJames
W and Laurette McDonald.

Harry Jackson (b. 1924)
Untitled, 1948.
Oil and oil with sand on can-
vas,2l I llox25 l5i l6 in.
Gilt of Anonymous Donor.

Frank Tenney Johnson (1 874'
1939)
Navajo by Moonlight or Night
in the Canyon, n.d.
Oil on canvas. 11 x B in.
Gift of Richard and Helen
Cashman.

Bruce Lattig (late 20th century)
Barn Owl. 25 x 3o 3lB rn.

Canada Geese, 21 112 x
29 112 rn.
Golden Eaqle, 34 x 25 in.
Golden Eaglets, 25 x 36 114 in
Goshawk, 25 x 36 114 in.
Peregrine Falcon, 32 112 x
23 in.
1 979, lithographs.
Gifts ol Mrs. Meri Jaye.

Amado Pena, Jr. (b. 1943)
Mestizo Series: San Ildefonso
Rojo, 1993.
Acrylic on board, 48 x 48 in.
Gilt of Pena Studios.

Michael Poulsen (b. 1953)
Portrait of Mrs. Henry H. R.
"Peg" Coe,1999.
Oil on canvas. 30 x 24 rn.
Commissioned by the Tribute
to Peg Coe Committee.

Fredrick Prescott (b. 1949)
Cowboy and lndtan. tqBT.
Steel, acrylic and oil,
36 314 x 34 114 x 12 in.
Gift ol Wiley T Buchanan IIL

William Tylee Ranney (1813-
1857)
Study "for Hunting Wild Horses,
ca.1846.
Pencil and black uayon
heightened with white on
paper,7 x 10 in.



The Lasso, 1846.
Oil on canvas, 32 x 42 112 in.
Gifts of Mrs. J. Maxwell
Moran.

Kevin Red Star (b. 1943)
Crow Winter Camp in Teepees,

1999.
Oil on paper, 22
30 114 in.
Wilham E. Weiss
Purchase.

5lB x

Fund

Frederic Remington ( 1 861 -

1 909)
The Cheyenne. copyright 1 901,
cast date unknown. Plaster,
19 5lB x 23 112 x 7 114 rn.
Gift ofJack Shaoul.

Thom Ross (b. 1952)
Burial at Sea. 1999.
Acrylic on canvas, 60 114 x
48 114 in.
William E. Weiss Fund
Purchase.

Jelfrey B. Rudolph (b. 1956)
Spirit of Cody. 1999
Bronze, 173lBxBx5in.
Coe Acquisitions Fund
Purchase.

Robert Seabeck (b 1945)
Cody's First Rendentous

Royale,1999.
Watercolor on paper, 30 x
24 in.
William E. Weiss Fund
Purchase.

Southwest basket owned by
Joseph Henry Sharp
Woven reed.
Gift ol the Carolyn Reynolds
Riebeth Family.

John Mix Stanley (1814-1872)
Casa Grande Ruin. 1846.
Oil on board, 9 7lB x
12 7lB in.
Gift ol George M. Stanley
(grandson of the artist) and
Family.

John Mix Stanley (1814-1872)
Peaks of the Sierra Blanca:
From Near Fort Massachusett8
ca.1B57-1860.
Lithograph,Bxllin.
Gift of Gloria S. Duffy and
Family.

PLAINS INDIAN MUSEUM

Hair ornament, Crow,
Montana, ca. 1974. Eagle
fearher. meral. glass beads,
rawhide.

Hair ornament, CroW
Montana, ca. 1974. Eagle
feather, metal, glass beads,
rawhide.
Roach headdress with storage
stick and wrap, Crow,
Montana, ca. 1973. Deer hair,
yarn. Gifrs ol William Rose in
memory ol Hugh Little Owl

Sun Dance kilt, CroW
Monrana, ca. 1q75. Fabric,
glass beads, sequins.
Gift of William Rose in
memory of Bertha Little Owl.

Wooden cane used in Crow
Sun Dance, ca. 1970. Wood,
metal.
Ring, Southwest, 1950s. Silver
and turquoise.
Cuff links, Southwest, 1950s.
Silver and turquoise.
Star quilt, Crow, Montana,
1 970s. Cotton fabric.
Star quilt, Crow, Montana,
1970s, Cotton fabric.
Gifts of William Rose in
memory of Dave and Dorothy
Jefferson.

Man's moccasins, Southern
Plains (Kiowa or Comanche),
ca. 1900. Tanned deer hide,
rawhide, glass beads,
pigmenf. Gift ol Mr. and Mrs.
Cliff Manuel.

Native American Church staff,
Emil Her Many Horses, Lakota
(Pine Ridge), 1999 Glass
beads, horsehair, wood.
Gift of the Pilot Foundation.

Wall hanging, Arthur Amiotte,
Lakota, 1q72. Wool, deer
hide. glass beads. porcupine
quills, hawk bell, mirror.
Gift ol the Pilot Foundation.

Corn Morher. ceramic. pig-
ments, grouse and pheasant
fearhers. turquoise. silver.
Southwest, 1985. Gift of
Museum Selections.

BUFFALO BILL MUSEUM

Two "Bullalo Bill" souvenir
plates; set of commemorative
coins; "Singing Cowboy"
movie lobby card. Museum
purchase, Bulfalo Bill Buffs
Fund.

Belgian "Buffalo Bill" souvenir
plare. cifr ol Mr. Felix
Roelandt.

"Kit Carson" medallion. Gilt
of Ms. Sara Kopicko.

Carved wood and leather
miniature stagecoach and
setting by Robert D. Waynee,
"Lone Eagle." Gift of the
artist.

Miniature Yellowstone coach
by Dale Ford. Gift of Mr. Silas
Cathcart.

Sidesaddle and lariat. Gift of
Mrs. Frances Purvis.

Pearly necklace, beaded
purse, feather fan, lramed
photographs and certificates.
Gilt of Mrs. Katherine Good.

"Daisy" bit. Gift of Mr. and
Mrs. Dwight Plymale.

"Cody Cigars" box, c. 1920.
Gilt ol Dr. Kenneth Leonard.

Miniature "Golden Spike"
pendant, l86q: cane. 1855,
belonged to Josiah Stanford.
Gift of Mr. Charles
Humberger.

Riding habir owned by Annie
Oakley. Gift of Mr. and Mrs.
Terry MacDonald.

CODY FIREARMS MUSEUM

Marlin Model 1893 "Trapper"
Short (15") barreled rifle,
32 - 40 chambering (1898

Gold pendant, a miniature of the Golden Spike, presented to Josiah Stanford of the
Union Pacilic Railroad to commemorate the joining ol the rails at Promontory
Summit, Utah, in 1869. Cilt olCharles E. and Margaret Canfield Humberger in
memory of David H. and Helen Stanford Canlield

Shield Composition. Arthur Amjotte and Shirley Scherer, Lakota, Sourh Dakota,
1973. Wool cloth. tanned deer hide, glass beads, porcupine quills, mirror, hawk bell
L30 314.W 26 114 in. Gift of rhe Pilot Foundation



winchester Model 21 seven barrel ser (3 barrels in .410 gauge, two in 28 gauge and 2 in 2O gauge). This one of a kind shotgun belonged to John Olin and was donared by

Mn and Mrs. Eugene F Williams, Jr

production). Museum pur-
chase.

Two screw bolsters for con-
verting llintlock to percussion
cap. Gift of Joseph L. Salter.

U.S. Army Field Carriage lor
colt Model 1BB3 Gatling Gun.
Museum purchase.

One WWII 30 caliber metal
ammunltion can; One WWII
metal ammunition can with
latch; One M1917A1 MG

rubber hose; One steam
condensing water can, One
M 1 91 7A 1 Clinometer; One
hundred 50 caliber M.G.
metallic links. Museum
purchase.

One Japanese type 99
light machine gun with
accessories, gift of Mrs.
Theodore Miller in memory
ol Theodore Miller.

Winchester Model 21. seven
barrel set. double barrel
shotgun, Winchester
Repeating Arms Company,
December 1950. Gift ol Mr.

and Mrs. Eugene F Williams,
Jr.

cartridge belr. Gilr of Lt. col.
William "Bill" Mozey.

Air pistol, Italy, 1960's. Gift ol
Dr Kenneth O. Leonard.

Marlin Model 1897 Annie
Oakley commemorative rifle,
Marlin Firearms Company,
1 997. Museum purchase.

Two hundred and fifty
cartridge holders and seventy
eight cartridges. Gift of Bob
and Millie Schulz.

Smith and Wesson .32 Safety
Hammerless, holster, box, two
.32 cartidge boxes, period
cleaning kit. Gift of Edgar L.

McCormick in memory of
Thomas Edward McCormick.

Stevens stocked pistol/rifle, J.
Stevens. Gift ol Mr. and Mrs.
Rolland F. Lorenz.

L.C. Smith Eagle Grade Trap
Shotgun, L.C. Smith, 1924.
cift of Douglas B. Upchurch.

Czech YZ52 rifle bayonet.
Gilt ol Peter Moucka.

Savage 242 Sertes C, Savage
Stevens Model 71 . Gift of J.S.
"Jim" Rhodebeck.

Two M14 trigger groups. Gilt
of anonymous staff member.

Five sniper rifles, one 50

caliber single shot, forty-five
machine guns. Gift of James
"Jim" L. Kuber

One Australia cartridge board,
Thirty six cartridge boxes and
twelve carrridges. Gift ol
Robert Posner and Elizabeth
Descala.

One French MAS 36 bolt
action rifle. Gift ol anony-
mous staff member.

Loving cup and suoll
presented to Harry E. Burton.
cift of Eugenia M. Sheffel.

358 Smith and Wesson
pistols. Gift of Janet Jerome
in memory of John K "Jim"

Jerome.

Firearms and ephemera
collection. Gift ol Brian P
McDonald and Ann
McDonald.

Daisy air rifle scope, Tasco,
1980's. Gift of Dr. Kenneth O.

Leonard.

DRAPER MUSEUM OF
NATURAL HISTORY

North American Elk (Cervus

elaphus\. Head and shoulder

mounl. Collected in 1964 rn

Park County, Wyoming,
Donated by Jane Rickman,
in memory of Edward R.

Rickman.

McCRACKEN RESEARCH
LIBRARY

The Yellowstone National Park
portfolio. Bos[on: L. Prang
and Co., 1876
Described by Prof. FV.
Hayden and illustrated by
Thomas Moran chromolitho-
graphs.
Gift ol Willis McDonald. IV.

L.A. Huffman Collection,
Exhibits C & H. Photographs
and correspondence of
frontier Miles City
photographer, ca. 1 879-1 920
Purchase/Donation from the
Thomas Minckler Gallery.

"Ranger Bob" Wilson Western
Music Collection. Over 800
compact disc recordings of
cowboy and related folk
music lrom the studio collec-
tion ol the Lawrence, Kansas
radio host. Gift lrom the
esrare of Robert C. "Ranger

Bob" Wilson.

Winchester Engineering Plan
Books. Twenty volumes of



original engineering plan
books of the Winchester
Repeating Arms Co. Gift of
Antony Galazan.

Camp Trails Collection.
Documents related to the his-
tory of Camp Trails, a boys
camp based out of Pahaska
Tepee that traveled through
Yellowstone National Park on
horseback. Gift of Dale Nuss.

Yellowstone Park Photographic
Album, July 21-August 9,
1913. Early set ol private
tourist photographs of
Yellowstone National Park by
Sue and Max Bulkeley. Gilt of
Robert Bulkley.

Across The Plains with Other
Memories and Essays by
Robert Louis Stevenson, 1 892,
recounting his trip across the
American great plains.
Museum purchase.

Original Records ol
Winchester Repeating Rifle
Co. A lramed map of the
Winchester manufacturing
plant, a set of serial number
books from the Winchester
polishing shop, and a type-
script of Veader and Earle's
1918 "Story of the Winchester
Repeating Arms Co."
Purchase/Donation from
Russell R. Dutcher through
the CFM.

North American Elk
(Certtus elaphus). Head
and shoulder mount.
Collected in 1964 in Park
County, Wyoming,
Donated by Jane
Rickman, in memory of
Edward R. Rickman.

Winchester Custom Shop gun
packing slips lor 1970, 19BO-
B1 . Gilt of Andy J. Wojtowycz,

Typed manuscript for Harold
Williamson's Winchester : The
Gun That Won the West (v.II):
card index ol TC. Johnson;
final dralt copy ol H. Houze
Winchester Bolt Action Military
and Sporting Rifles : 1 877- 1 937 ;
specifications for French
Ministry ol War Model 1907-
1915 rifle; 1991 label copy lor
CFM; seven firearm history
books; several current maga-
zine issues; Guntracker Gun
Inventory software; and two
Winchester lirearms instruc-
tion booklets. Gift of Herbert
G. Houze.

Winchester and Marlin cata-
logs, 1933-1999. Giit of
James Rhodebeck.

Firearms manulacturers cata-
logs and price lists. Original
advertising marerials ol
numerous gun companies of
the 20th century. Gilt ol Roy
Marcot.

Parker shotgun pamphlets.
Gift ol Bill Froelich.

WH "Cap" and Virgil Richard.
Historical information on the
father and son sharpshooters,
1920s-1950s. Gift ol Calvin A.
Richard.

Curtis Liston. Historical infor-
mation on this sharpshooter
for Buflalo Bill's Wild West.
Gift ol Lois Liston Zeuch.

C entury lllu s tr at e d M onthly
Magazine and other late 19th
century serials. Gift of Sheila
Knoller Fischgrund.

The Brand. Newsletter of
Valley, Wyoming, 1931 -33.
Donated by Mrs. H. Halstead
Park, Jr.

Fort Belknap News for A/orl. A
nearly complete run of this
recent but very scarce
newspaper of the Fort Belknap
Reservation, Ft. Belknap, MT
Gift of editor Benny Rider.

Through the Eyes oJ an Indian.
Controversial, privately pub'
lished weekly
magazine, 1993-1994, of the
Blackfeer Indian Reservar ion,
Browning, MT Gilt of editor-
publisher Tom McKay.

Greever family photographs,
with taped interview of Ada
Greever. Gift of Karen
Gibbons.

George Beck lamily papers
and books; and books on
Buflalo Bill and the West. Gift
ol the Quin and Ruth BIair
family.

"Early Cody Bands" typescript
by Ester Johansson Murray.
Gift of the author.

"Tag Tail" typed manuscript
account of growing up in
Oregon and ldaho. written in
1917. Buffalo Bill's "circus"
mentioned as a highlight. Gift
of Uretta Noyes.

Four framed photographs,
including an image by Richard
Throssell. a possible L.A.
Huffman print, and
magazines with articles
relating to the history of the
Willcutt ranching operations.
Gift ol Mrs. Harvey Willcutt.

Natural history journals and
books. Gift of Charles
Preston.

Scholarly publications on
anthropology and western
natural history. Gift of Robert
Pickering.

Books on western history and
race relations, American
Indian cuhure. and historic
newspaper illusffations. Gilt
ol Byron Price.

Wild West Shorzs typed draft
manuscript by Paul Reddin;
"No Farewell for Buffalo Bill."
manuscript by Don Russell,
"W.F Cody Bullalo Bill
Collector's Guide with Values"
by James W. Wojtowicz, typed
draft manuscript; and western
history books. Gift of Paul
Fees.

Western exploration and nat-
ural history publications. Gift
of Deborah Steele.

Exhibition catalogs of the
National Gallery ol Australia,
on exhibits comparing the
American and Australian
landscapes. Gift of William D.
Weiss.

The Ltfe oJJim Baker by Nolie
Mumey. Gift ol Laurence H.
Gardner, II.

Arnold Hague's Geology of the
Yellowstone National Park, Part
11 Washington, GPO: 1899.
Gilt of Mary E. Witliams.

Books on Old West guns and
shooting. Gilt in memory of
Robert (Bob) A. Wright Sr. by
Mary Louise Wright.

BulJalo Bill and related dime
novels/western comic books.
Gift of Beth Kerchner.

Dime novels of Fred Fearnot,
Dick Daresome, and the No-
Good Boys. Gilt of Gary L.
Sharp.

Yellowstone National Park pro-
motional materials. Gift ol
Buck and Shirley Wilkerson.

Yellowstone National Park his-
tory and peroglyph publica-
tions. Gilt of June Sandburg.

Custer s Last Flghr movie
advertisement of the Western
Feature Film Co. Gift ol Brian
Dippie.

Song ol Bulfalo Bill's Wild
West in Scotland by John
Waft. Gift of Edward Miller.



Thomas Moran (1837-1926), YeLlowstone Lake. c. 1875. Chromolithograph, 9 314 x l4 in. Buffalo Bill Historical Center, Cody, WY. Gilt olWillis McDonald IV

Two framed Nicholas
Eggenhofler art prints. Gift of
Florence Dais.

In the Land of the Head
Hunlers by Edward S. Curtis.
other Native American
books, and western "popular
culture" printed materials and
photographs. Gift ol Gloria
S. Duffy.

Northern Cheyenne research
papers. Gift of Margot
Liberty.

Books on wesrern home-
steading, prospecting,
trapping and songs. Gilt of
Jim Hilger.

Sporting and shooting
magazines featuring the pub-

"+rEiEtiUl

lished artwork of Lynn Bogue
Hunt. Gilt of Clilton Shafer.

Nine articles on shotguns by
William Furnish relating to
the William Furnish Shotgun
Collection ol the CFM. Gilt
of the author.

FJ. Hiscock commercial pho-
tographs of the Cody Road to
Yellowstone. Gilt of Richard
Hawkins.

Inventory of the Sydney
Barnett Papers, Archives of
Ontario. Gift of William
.Jamieson.

American Indian art history
publications. Gilt ol the
National Museum of the

American Indian.
Books on American Studies.
Gilt of Gerhard Hoffman.

Video ol Gene Belgrade,
Chippewa elder. Gift of John
R. Tkach.

CD-ROM, virtual Geologic dnd
Geographic Atlas of Colorado,
1BB1 . Cjft. of Matt Heron.

ADDITIONAL DONATIONS
WERE MADE BY THE
FOLLOWING INDIVIDUALS
AND INSTITUTIONS:

Sarah E. Boehme
Nathan E. Bender
Dave Bragonier
Richard S. Buswell

Ray Duff
Henry Morrison Flagler

Museum
Hermon George, Jr.
Frank H. Goodyeaq Jr.
Storm John
Keith and Betsy Kendall-

Browne

John B. Mortensen
Karl May Museum
Felix Roelandt
Simeon Stoddard
Shed Streidl
Colin F Taylor

{jF{;i



Amangani
Ms. Sue Anschutz-Rodgers
Antler Inn
Armory Publications
Basin Vision Center, PC
Beretta USA Corp.
Best Western Sunset Motor

Inn
Blair Hotels
Mr. Daniele D. Bodini
Dr. Sarah E. Boehme
Mr Wiley T Buchanan III
The Building Center' Cody
Bull Moose Bistro
Burl Inn
Carter Mountain Motel
Mr. & Mrs. Silas S. Cathcart
Mr. Reid Christie
Circuit Riders
Clean Sweep
CIubCorp, Inc.
Cody Motor Lodge
Cody Rodeo Company
Mrs. Henry H.R. Coe
Colt's Manulacturing Co., Inc
Comfort lnn
Coralie's Cottages
Daisy Manulacturing

Company, Inc.
Days Inn
Mr. & Mrs. Corilandt S.

Dietler
Mr. John Disanti
Durango & Silverton Narrow

Gauge Railroad Museum
Embassy Suites Hotel
Federal Cartridge Co.

Mr. Michael Ferraiolo
Mr. & Mrs. Melvin M. Fillerup
Freedom Arms Company
Mr. Mack H. Frost
Cainan's Flowers and CiiLs

John and Karen Gibbons
Grand Targhee Resort
Hells Canyon Winery
HF Bar Ranch
Hi Mountain Jerky
Hidden Creek Outlitters
Holiday Motel
Images of Nature
Irma Hotel
Mr. & Mrs. Roberl A.

Jackson
Kelly Inn
Mr. & Mrs. T D. Kelsey
Mr. & Mrs. Charles G. Kepler
KPMG Peat Marwick
La Comida
Ms. Dawn Lappin
Legends - Red Lodge
Leupold & Stevens, Inc.
Linton's Big R
Lockhart Bed & Breakfast Inn
Mr. Allan Mardon
Marlin Firearms Company
Maxwell's
Mr. Willis McDonald IV
Michael's of Oregon
Midwest Fence Compan;
Mr. & Mrs. Nick A. Misciagna
Mountain West Trading

Company
Nedra Matteucci's Galleries
New West Furnrture

Mr. & Mrs. Edwin V.

Newcomer
Mr. James E. Nielson
North Pass. Ltd
Northern Gardens

Greenhouse and Nursery
O. F Mossberg & Sons, Inc.
O.C. Tanner
Olive Glenn Goll & Counry

Club
Omega World Travel
Orvis Company, Inc.
Parson's Pillow
Mr. & Mrs. Gary Parsons
Dr. H. Lynn Parsons M.D
Mrs. Nancy D. Petry
Mr. & Mrs. Patrick G. Pitet
Plush Pony
The Powder Horn Ranch and

Golf Club
Precision Made Carridges
The Proud Cut Saloon
Rainbow Park Motel
Ramada Inn Downtown
sports center
Regent Beverly Wilshire Hotel
Remington Arms Company,

Inc.
Richard Petty Driving

Experience
Rio Suite Hotel & Casino
Ms. Nancy Robison
Rocky Mountain Sports
Mr. Roy Rogers, Jr.

Ms. Sherry S. Sander
Savage Industries
Scary Mary's

Ceorge Catlin (1 7 9 6- I 87 2)

Catchinq the Wild Harses.

lithograph. hand colored,
13 x 17 1 12 in Buffalo
Bill Hisrorical Center.

Cody, WY. Cift of
Mrs. Sidney T' Mjller.

Mr. & Mrs. Ed Schnackenberg
Mr. & Mrs. Robert Seabeck
Shoshone Distributing Co.,

Inc.
Simpson Gallagher Gallery
Skyline Motor Inn
Smith & Wesson
Sr Nick & co
Sffater Hotel
Sturm, Ruger & Co., Inc
Sunlight Sports
Super B - Cody
Tanager Beverages
Mr. & Mrs. Harold R. Tate
Team USA Shooting
Teton Pines Resort
Texaco Car Wash
Timber Creek Interiors

Furniture & Design
Mr. & Mrs. Calvin Todd
Tri Tel, Inc
Uplown Motel
The Village Shoppe
Wal-Mart
Wayne's Boot Shop
Mr. & Mrs. William D. Weiss
Western 6 Gun Motel
Western Canvas Supply &

Repair
Mrs. Helen G. Wichern
Wind Chimes Cotrage
Wyo. Chapter Natl. Wild

Turkey Federatron
Yellowstone National Park

Lodges



Liz Brink
President

Irene Schultz
Vice President

Marilyn Jensen
Secretary

Jim Connor
Board Member-a.t-Large

Cheryl Darling
Board Member-at-Large

Knox Pannill
Board Member-at-Large

Marian Swartz
Board Member-aFLarge

Charley Phillips
Frontier Festival Chair

Kathy Taggart
Patron's Ball Chair

Susan Ahalt
Darin Alexander

Joan Anderson

Jack Atkins
Ann Ayres
Dan Ayres

Jim Barrett
Linda Barrett

John Barrus
Darren Beier
Melodie Beier

Janette Bell
Sharen Benner
Mylda Benson
Shirley Benson
Gwendolyn Boehme
Yoshiko Bogard
Phyllis Bohm
Sharon Bothwell

Jo Ann Bradley
Liz Brink

John Brooks

John Brouillette

Jill Carow
Pafficia Catsimanes
Bonnie Chudaloff
Pam Claus
Norma Jean Clayton
Gwynne Clements
Carol Cloudwalker
Leigh Collin
John Collar
Mona Collar
Anita Comstock
Richard Conger

Robert Connolly
Cynthia Connor
James Connor
Augusta Conrad

Juletta Corbin
Debbie Cram
Dana Cranfill

Jenna Crawford
Bob Darling
Cheryl Darling

Joe Desson
Susan Diehl

Julia Dowling
Dorothy Downes
Mary Duggleby
Bryan Edwards
Martha Edwards
Pam Feeley
Kathryn Flitner
Dave Flurkey

Jo Frederickson
Reva Friedly

Jean Friesen
Steve Garbe
Karen Gibbons
Christine Gimmeson
Shelia Goodwin

John Goodyear
Claudina Graham
Sue Granger
Mary Louise Greever

Julie Haglund
Megan Haglund

Jennie Harris
Lucy Harvey

John Hawk
Kitty Hawk
Helen Helms
Sherrie Hettinger

James Horvath
Andrew Houze
Bill Hovland

Jean Howrey
Wayne Hudson
Karen Huge
Doug Hunter
Rae Hunter
Warren Hunter
Lisa Jackson
Lema Jamieson
Helen Janssen
Evelyn Jenkins
Marilyn Jensen
Donna Johnson
Erin Jones
Pat Jordan
Leslie Keltner
Betsy Kendall-Browne
Keith Kendall-Browne
Donna Kenney
Artie Kirkpatrick
Gail Knapp

Natalie Koontz
Randy Krier
MacKenzie Landers
Becky Larrew
Christi Ledbetter
Anton Lehman
Shelly Lehman
Ginny Lippiello
Melanie Lovelace
Kathryn Madaus
Bryan Malody
Cathy Marine
Annette Marsico
Darlene Mccarty
Tina Mccarty
Phyllis McCormick
Bruce McDonald
Mary F McDonald
Mary Lou McDonald

Jim McNiece
Phyllis McNiece
Alice Mentock
Eleanor Messer
Cole Moir
Mary Moir

Joanita Monteith
Patricia Morphew
Minnie Moser
Roger Murray
Vernice Myers
Ora Gay Myrick
Keith NeVille
Lora Newcomer
Warren Newman

Jacque Nieters
Kathie Noblette
Craig Nutt
Debbie Oakley-Simpson
Edgar O'Hair
Marilyn O'Hair

Jane Pannill
Knox Pannill
Sharee' Paquette
Laurie Parker
Amanda Patterson
Virginia Pearson
Amanda Perdue
Charley Phillips
Lelani Synder Pillsbury
Lynn Pitet
Patrick Pitet
Gerry Pladson
Phyllis Pond
Harriet Potter
Steve Potter
Lois Purvis
Cindy Rankin
Bob Richard
Beverly Robertson

Jay Roelen

Jerry Roelen
Betty Jean Rogers

Jane Rose
Patricia Ruppert
Shelagh Ruppert
Georgia Safford
Arne Sandberg

June Sandberg
Elysa Schiltz
Russell Schloss

Jaime Schmeiser
Karl Schnackenberg
Michael Schneider
Linda Schoening
Steve Schreplerman
Bonnie Schultz
Irene Schultz
Marlene Sibley
Paul Sibley
Lila Sidwell
Linda Siligato
M. A. "Ace" Sims
Barbara Smith
Donna Soule
Sandra Stalford
Lura Steele
Cliflord Steiner

Jackie Steiner
Heather Stewart
Marian Swartz
Kimber Swenson
Katie Szutz
Sierra Szutz
Betsy -laggart

.lames G. 'laggart

Kathy Taggart
Phyllis Taggart
Marilyn Taylor
Larry Thomas

Jodie Thompson
Margot Belden Todd

Jeff Tornow
Martha Jo Vanoni
Shirrel VanTassel

Jim Vickonoff
Jean White
Candy Whitt
Hub Whitt
Jeri Wilder
Kathryn Williams
Marcia Williams
Tim Woodard

Jeannie Yates



ADMINISTRATION

B. Byron Price
Executiye Director

Wally Reber
Associate Director

Christine Houze
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

The audited financial statements included in this report illustrate our economic health, progress and our pro-

gram activities. Please review the detailed statements that follow. Some of the highlights are:

Net Assets

Last year Total Net Assets surpassed the S100 million mark for the Buffalo Bill Memorial Association. Our

sffengths continue to broaden through measured growth in collections, endowment and capital investment.

Capital Campaign

A Campaign to Secure the Future continued its dramatic growth during 1999 and resulted in a Campaign
year-end cumulative total (including prior gifts and irrevocable conditional promises) of 527,345,882.

Endowmmt and Inv e I tments

Including both additions and distributions, fair value of the Center's investments increasedby 2.67o or

S 1 ,191 ,238 during 7999 to a total of $47,571,161.

Admissions

As Yellowstone road construction continued, admissions decreased by 6.6Vo, bringing us closer to our '97

level. Our revenues were up, however, by 23.3 % to $ 1,680 ,396, due to higher ticket prices in 1999.

The Memorial Association's Finance Committee consults with museum management bi-monthly and annually
with the independent auditors to monitor their respective conffols and review the financial reporting process.

U/A*{ r#7'u f%,flffi-
Charles G. Kepler
Chairman, Finance Committee
Buffalo Bill Memorial Association

Eugene W. Reber
Associate Director
Buffalo Bill Historical Center



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Trustees

Buffalo Bill Memorial Association:

We have audited the statements of financial position of Buffalo Bill Memorial Association as of
December 31 , 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Association's management. Our respon'
sibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Buffalo Bill Memorial Association at December 31 ,7999 and 1998, and the results
of its activities and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

dPntc' LtF
Billings, Montana

April 20, 2000



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31,7999 AND 1998

ASSETS 1999 1998

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of contributions receivable

Total cuffent assets

Noncurrent assets:
Conffibutions receivable, less current portion
Investments
Properry and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
Collections

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

790,769
57,945

1,015,662
99,211

2.556.123
4,519,710

5,295,O77
47,571,161
17,674,033
38,867,391

s 113.927,372

s 667,175
60,049

997,957
75,419

1,169,061
2,969,661

4,829,749
46,379,923
14,567,984
35,457,481

s 104.204.798

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Current portion of notes payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable, less current portion

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily resfficted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements

380,476
57.701

438,177

142,5A2

26,408,625
63,355,278
23.582.790

113,346,693

9__!:221;12_

680.506
41,798

722,304

188,582

23,880,430
57,252.767
22.160.715

t03,293,912

t__!9t291t23



STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999 AND 1998

1999 1 998

Changes in unrestricted net assets:
Revenues and gains:

Contributions
Contributed services and property
Admissions charges
Auxiliary activities
Fees
Investment income (net of investment expense of

5138,614 and 5126,715 for 1999 and 1998, respectively)
Realized and unrealized gain on investments, net
Other

Total unrestricted revenues and gains

Net assets released from restrictions:
Expiration of time restrictions
Satisfaction of program restrictions

Total net assets released from restrictions
Total unrestricted revenues, gains & other support

Expenses and losses:
Curatorial and conservation
Collections and exhibits
Research activities
Membership activities
Educational programs
General and administrative
Physical plant and security
Fundraising activities
Auxiliary activities
Reclassification of unresfficted net assets used to

acquire property and equipment
Total expenses and losses
Increase in unresfficted net assets

Changes in temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions
Contributed property
Contributed collections
Auxiliary activities
Fees
Investment income (net of investment expense of

530,273 and524,462for 1999 and 1998, respectively)
Realized and unrealized gain on investments, net
Loss on sale of collections
Loss on sale of property and equipment
Reciassification of unrestricted net assets used to

acquire property and equipment
Net assets released from restriction

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets

Changes in permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions
Realized and unrealized gains on investments, net

Increase in permanently restricted net assets

Increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

See accornpanying notes to financial statements.

1,087,916
150,581

1,680,396
1,897,663

631,579

892,910
1,536,401

3,360

3,829,804
185,531

|,362,539
1,788,351

561,081

891,831
3,O53,547

2,O54
7,880,806

706,767
985.265

t1,674,738

236,O44
1,023,615

1.692.032 t.259.659
9,572,838

733,735
758,383

74,875
256,284
469,146

1,493,296
1,282,393

383,599
1,554,885

38,O47

t2,934,397

664,224
589,944
54,608

292,449
449,320

1,438,768
1,146,255

439,828
1,595,554

125,633

2,528,195

4,285.750
14,036

3,025,020

39,681

215.205
233,999
(22,069)
(35.126)

38,O47
(1.692.032)

7,044,643 6,796,583
6,137,814

3,515,O79
41,392

1,247,531
8,921

23,385

210,811
452,916
(7,000)

(44,118)

125,633
(t,259,659)

4,314,891

2,158,892
2,377,644

6,102,511

418,095
1,003,980
1,422,075 4,536,536

10,052,78t
103,293,912

14,989,241
88,304,671

slt3,346,693 s1O3,293,912



STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999 AND 1998

1999 1998

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
Unrealized gain on investments, net
Realized gain on sales of investments, net
Loss on sale of property and equipment
Loss on sale of collections
Contributions in kind
Conffibutions resfficted for long-term investment
Change in:

Accounts and interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Contributions receivable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of collections
Purchases of collections

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Contributions resfficted for long-term investment
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable
Repayment of notes payable

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for interest

9ee accompanying notes to financial statements.

(1,607,280) (2,058,090)

2,104
(17,705)
(23,792)

(1.852.390)

10,052.781

574,218
(1,930,125)

(844,255)
35,126
22,069

(3,e56,es})
(418,095)

14,989,241

558,844
(4,005,001)
(1,879,106)

44,118
7,000

(4,372,028)
(2,158,892)

(4,52t)
(77,524)

20,097
(3,318,813)

481 ,362
2847n

1,300,000
(t,404,668)

792
(1,799,329)

17,300
(172.185)

2,158,892

326,880
340.295

_____991,111

20,653

5,344,920
(2,829,848)

(3,715,393)
7,931

@14.890)

418,O95
261,620

(291,7e7)
387,918
123,594
667.175
790.769

17,675



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,1999 AND 1998

(1) SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCTES

(a) Organization
Buffalo Bill Memorial Association (the Association), located in Cody, Wyoming, is a not-for-profit enrity which serves the public
by advancing knowledge about the American west through acquiring, exhibiting and interpreting collecrions of artifacts and
preserving their physical and contextual integrity. The Association depends upon contributions from the public, admission
charges and auxiliary activities (museum gift shop and restaurant) to fund current operations.

The Association comprises the McCracken Research Library, the Plains Indian Museum, the Buffalo Bill Museum, the Whitney
Gallery of Western Art, the Cody Firearms Museum and the Draper Natural History Museum.

(b) Basis of Presentation

The Association classifies net assets, revenues, expenses, gains and losses based on the existence or absence of donor'imposed
restfictions.

Permanently resfficted net assets are those subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the
Association. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the Association to use the interest and dividend income earned, if any,
on related investments for general or specific purposes. A limited number of donors also allow the Association to use capital
gains, if any, on related investments for general or specific purposes.

Temporarily restricted net assets are those subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met by actions of the
Association and/or the passage of time.

Unrestricted net assets are those not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and donor-restricted contributions whose restric-
tions are met in the same reporting period.

A donor's gift may impose restrictions on otherwise unrestricted net assets. Such restrictions result in a reclassification of unre,
stricted net assets to permanently restricted or temporarily restricted net assets depending on the nature of the resffiction.

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restric-
tions. Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabil-
ities are reported as increases or decreases in unresfficted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation
or by law.

Expirations of temporary restrictions on net assets (i.e., the donor'stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated
time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets.

(c) Cash Equivalents

The Association considers all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equiv-
alents.

(d) Contributions and Gifts

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received. Promises to give that
are scheduled to be received after the balance sheet date are shown as increases in temporarily restricted net assets and are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets when the cash is received and any purpose restrictions are met. Conditional promises to
give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is when the conditions on which they depend are substantially
met. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value. Contributions to be received after one
year are discounted at an appropriate discount rate commensurate with the risks involved. Amortization of discount is record-
ed as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on the contributions.

It is the policy of the Association to report gifts of land, buildings and equipment as temporarily restricted support unless explic-
it donor stipulations specify that the donated assets are permanently restricted. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how
long those long-lived assets must be maintained, the Association reports expiration of restrictions as the donated or acquired
long-1ived assets are depreciated.

The Association reports gifts of collection items as temporarily restricted support unless explicit donor stipulations specify that
the donated collections are permanently restricted. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those collections must be
maintained, the Association reports expiration of resffictions as the donated or acquired collections are deaccessioned.

- notes continue on next page



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,1999 AND 1998

(e) Inventories

Inventories consist of museum gift shop merchandise for resale to the public. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, com-

puted on a weighted average, or net realizable value.

(fl Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated use-

ful lives of the assets, which generally approximates 15 to 60 years for buildings, 10 to 20 years for improvements and 5 to 20

years for eguipment.

(g) Collections

The Association capitalizes purchased collections at cost. Collections acquired by donation ate capftalized at fair value at the

date of donation. Proceeds from collection items sold are used to purchase other items for collections.

(h) Investments

The Association reports equity securities having readily determinable fair values and all debt securities at fair value with unre-

alized gains and losses included in the statement of activities.

The Association has the intent and abilify to hold its investments for greater than one year. Accordingly, all investments are clas-

sified as long-term.

(i) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based upon management's assessment of the collectibility of accounts and con-

tributions receivable. No allowance for doubtful accounts was, in the opinion of management, necessary at December 31, 1999

or 1998.

() Income Thxes

The Association is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, except for income

from sale of certain items by the Association's gift shop. Income taxes related to these sales were not material in 1999 and 1998.

(k) Use of Estimates

Management of the Association has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabil-

ities and revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

(l) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1998 financial statements to conform to the 1999 presentation.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

(2) CONTRTBUTTONS RECETVABLE

Contributions receivable at December 31 consist of the following:

Cody, Wyoming house - conriburion of 90% undivided
interest in the property, net of retained life estate

Palm Springs, California house - contriburion of 25Vo

undivided interest in the property, net of retained life estate

Unconditional promises to give cash

Less current portion

Contributions receivable at December 31 , 1999 become due as follows:
Due in less than one year
Due in one to five years
Due in more than five years

Corporate stocks and bonds
Mutual funds
U.S. Government obligafions
Other

1999 1998

s 1,345,500

237,500

6,268,200

$ 1,345,500

237,500

4,415,810
7,851,200
2,556,123

5,998,810
1,169,061

S 5,2e5,077 s 4.829.749

s 2,556,123
1,960,552
3.334.525

s 7,851.200

The Cody, Wyoming house was contributed to the Association during 1995 by means of an irrevocable gift agreement which
requires that, upon termination of the life estate, the Association must liquidate the property. The agreement states that 90 % of
the proceeds from sale is to be retained by the Association and 1O% is to be ffansferred to the Cody Medical Foundation (not a
related entity).

A 25Vo undivided interest in the Palm Springs, California house was contributed to the Association during 1995 by means of an
irrevocable gift agreement which requires the property be liquidated upon termination of the life estate. The Association is enti-
tledto 257o of the proceeds from the sale of the house.

The amounts recorded reflect the Association's interests in the properties (90 % - Cody house; 25Vo - Palm Springs house) and
are included in noncurrent assets in the accompanying statement of financial position.

Unconditional promises to give cash due after one year are recorded at their present value (discounted at 6%). The unamortized
discount is$2,131 ,437 andSl ,259,350 at December 31,1999 and 1998, respectively. The accretion of the discount in subse-
quent years is reported as additional contribution in the net asset class in which the original promise was made.

The Association has received a $10 million irrevocable conditional promise to give for the establishment of a natural history
museum. The promise to give is conditional on the Association spending $5 million of other funds towards establishing the
museum. The first S5 million of the promise to give is a dollar-for-dollar match, with the remaining $5 million conditional upon
the full $5 million of other funds being expended. At December 31 ,1999, the Association has expended 55.4 million towards
establishing the museum; therefore, under the terms of the promise to give, $3.4 million of the $ tO million promise ro give has
been earned. As the promise to give specifies no amounts will be paid within the next year, the $1.5 million unconditional
promise to give has, at December 37,1999, been recorded as a contribution receivable at its discounted value of S1.7 mitlion.
The remaining 56.6 million of the $ 10 million conditional promise to give has not been recorded at Decembe r 3l , 1999 .

(3) TNVESTMENTS

Investments by investment type at December 31 consist of the following:

1999 1998

s 30,127,427
15,572,642

719,793
1,151,299

s 28,701.449
16,176,883

794,523
707.068

s 46.379.923s 47 ,571 ,161

- noteE continue on next page



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,1999 AND 1998

(4) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at December 37 are summarized as follows:

Land, buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

(5) COLLECTTONS

Collections at December 31 are summarized as follows:

Artifacts, photos, memorabilia, etc.

Art and bronzes

(6) NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable at December 31 consist of the following:

9 % notes payable in quarterly installments totalling 59,032
including interest, through 2002

9% notes payable in quarterly installments totalling 54,384
including interest, through 2005

Other notes payable

Less current portion

1999 1998

s 17,036,744
1,646,777
5.067.350

s 17,1O0,042
1.641 ,718
1.678,664

23,750,871

6,076,838

20,420,424

5.852.440
s 17.674.033 s 14,567,984

1999 1998

s 17 ,48e,255
21.378.136

s 19,008,220
16,449,261

s 38,867,391 s 35.457.481

1999 1998

$ e8,763

80,625

s 115,904

90,351

26,12520.815
200,203

57.701
230,380

41 ,798

sl42.502 188,582

The Association has a $1 million unsecured line of credit, bearing interest atttle WaII StteetJournal prime 1ate (8.5% at

December 31 , 1999), due July 26, 2OOO, interest payable quarterly. There was no outstanding balance on this line at

December 31,1999 or 1998.

Notes payable totaling 598763 at December 31 , 1999 consist of tr,vo related notes issued to fund the purchase of an artifacts

collection. The notes are secured by the collection which has a carrying value of $341 ,210.

Notes payable totaling $80,625 at December 31 , 1999 consist of three related notes issued to fund the purchase of an artifacts

collection. The notes are secured by the collection which has a carrying value of $162,000.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

Aggregate maturities of notes payable are as follows:

Legal services
Accounting services
Development related services and property

Year ending December 51,

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
Thereafter

s 57,701
43,918
50,563
14,209
15,499
18,313

s 2OO,2O3

(7) CONTRTBUTED SERVTCES AND pROpERTy

The Association records contributed services at fair value if the services received create or enhance nonfinancial assets or
require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would need to be purchased if not provided by
donation. The Association records contributed property at estimated fair value at the date of conffibution. Following is a sum-
mary of the nature of contributed services and property and their fair value during the years ended December 37.

1999 1998

s 9,100
8,000

147.517

s-
8,000

218,923

The Association also receives
Following is a summary of
December 31:

contributions of services that
the nature and fair values

do not meet the criteria
of contributed services

s 164,617 s 226.923

for recognition in the financial statements.
not recognized during the years ended

1999 1998

Education docents services
Curatorial services
Collection services
Administrative services
Event support services
Other

s 22,282
19,865

8,331

13,839
9,760
4,600

5 21,887
20,304
6,358

17,788
6,836

s 78,677 s 73,173

(8) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Association is required to disclose the fair value for financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the statements of
financial position. A financial instrument is defined as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity, or a contract that
both imposes a contractual obligation on one entity to deliver cash or another financial instrument to a second entity. The fol-
lowing methods and assumptions were used by the Association in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments:

Financial Assets: Due to the liquid nature of the instruments, the carrying value of cash approximates fair value. For all
investments, the fair value is based upon quoted market prices. The fair value of accounts and interest receivable approxi-
mates book value as the Association expects contractual receipt in the near-term. The fair value of contributions receivable
approximates book value as the Association records contributions receivable at their present value.

Financial Liabilities: The fair value of accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates book value due to contractual
payment in the near'term. The fair value of notes payable approximates book value as the interest rates on the notes
approximate the Association's current long-term borrowing rate.

Limitations: Fair value estimates are made at a specific ppint in time, based on relevant market information and informa-
tion about the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offer-
ing for sale at one time the Association's entire holdings of a particular instrument. Because no market exists for a signifi-
cant portion of the Association's financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding comparable
market interest rates, future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various

- notes continue on next page
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financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of

significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect

the estimates. Fair value estimates are based on existing balance sheet financial instruments without attempting to est:imate

the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instruments.

(9) NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

During the years ended December 37,1999 and 1998, the Association received gifts of collections valued at53,O25,O2O and

51,24i,531, respectively. During the year ended December 37, 1999 and 1998, the Association received gifts of securities val-

ued at 9931 ,9i0 and 53,124.4g7 , respectively. During the year ended December 37, 1 998, the Association acquired a collection

through the issuance of a $37,500 note payable.

(10) TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily resricted net assets are available for the following purposes or periods at December 31:

r999 1998

Collections
Curatorial and conservation
Research activities
Educational programs
Physical plant and security
Fund raising activities
For periods after December 51

Investments in perpetuity, the interest and dividend income from which
is expendable to support:

General and administrative
Curatorial and conservation

Investments in perpetuity, the interest and dividend income and capital gains

from which are expendable to support:
Collections
Educational programs
Curatorial and conservation

Land required to be used for museum building

541,317,252
501 ,447
162,323
213,440

18,387,811

2.773,005

s37,768,7e8
322,145
216,881
157,BO5

15.505,792
3,859

3,277,487

s63,355,278

(11) PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

permanently restricted net assets are restricted to the following purposes at December 31:

t999

s57.252.767

1998

$ 15,658,305
4.383,377

s 14,787,640
4.240,063

20,041,682

1,999,765
350,000

1.025.843

19,027,703

t.660,124
281,545

1.025.843
3,375,608

165,500
2,967,512

165.500

s 23,582.7eO s 22,160,715

(12) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Association has a 4oi(b) savings plan for full-time employees who have completed one year of service. The Association is

required to match employee contributions up to a maximum of 4To of each eligible employee's salary. The Association made

contributions of $60,841 and 557 ,456 to the plan in 1999 and 1998, respectively.
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(15) COMMTTMENTS

The Association has committed to purchase approximately $600,000 of collections from an unrelated third party over the next
three years. The Association has signed construction conracts for approximately $5.5 million, of which it has expended approx-
imately $t million.
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